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Dear Shareholder,

Blyth is in a much better position at the end of fiscal year 2008 than we were at the end of fiscal
year 2007, demonstrated by our improved earnings. Qur balance sheel is as strong as ever, with cash
and short-term investments of nearly $200 million. We retired $57 million in debt over the past year,
and we have no net debt. While sales at PartyLite U.S. have declined, PartyLite Europe continues to
show double digit sales growth. OQur Miles Kimball Company continues to hold its own in a tough
consumer spending environment, and the turnarounds of our Sterno and Midwest businesses are well
underway.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we divested Blyth HomeScents International (BHI), our
mass channel wholesale home fragrance business, for $25 million, completing our exit from the food/
drug/mass marketplace. BHI was the ariginal base from which we built cur leadership position in home
fragrance, which continues today with our PartyLite and Colonial Candle brands. Nevertheless, with our
focus on the Direct-to-Consumer and premium Wholesale channels, as well as the Sterno business, BHI
had become less of a strategic fit for Blyth going forward. Thus, when conversations arose with a strong
and growing competitor interested in increasing its mass channel presence, we were receptive 10 a
dialog and ultimately sold them the business.

Financial Performance, Fiscal Year 2008

Net sales for the f(iscal year ended January 31, 2008 declined 5% to $1,165 million but were even
with prior year excluding sales from the divested BHI. Net income for the fiscal year was $11.1 million,
which was a significant improvement {rom last year on both a reported and normalized basis. Non-cash
goodwill and intangibles impairment charges associated with the Miles Kimball Company and
restructuring of our remaining wholesale candle operations negatively impactled profitability, but
continued growth in PartyLite Europe and turnarounds at Midwest and Sterno, along with favorable tax
adjusiments, resulled in reported earnings per share of $0.28, or $1.61 on a normalized basis—
representing a significant improvement over last year.

Blyth continued to generate strong Cash Flow From Operations of $92 million during the fiscal
year, which supported the decision by our Board of Directors Lo increase our dividend to $0.54 per
share in fiscal 2008, an increase of 8% over the total dividend paid in fiscal 2007. We paid a total of
$20.9 million in dividends during fiscal 2008, representing a 2.8% yield based on our current share
price. Moreover, in fiscal 2008, we repurchased 3.2 million shares of our common stock for a total cost
of $64.2 million. Capital expenditures of $9 million were invested during the year, with web-based
initiatives being a key priority. Qur financial position remains very strong.

In the Direct Selling segment, fiscal year 2008 sales of $68G.8 million were nearly even with the
prior year. PartyLite Europe reported 16% sales growth overall. Sales increased double-digit in many
European markets, which, when combined with results in the large and more mature German market,
netted to mid single-digit sales growth in local currency. Sales in PartyLite Canada, also a mature




market, increased low single digit in local currency. Sales in PartyLite U.S. declined 15%, and
stabilizing this market continues to be a top priority for senior management.
i

In the Catalog & Internet segment, fiscal year 2008 sales increased 4% to $206.8 million, Sales for
the Miles Kimball Company grew slightly over prior year, which we believe is a respectable
accomplishment given the difficult’ consumer environment. An increase in postage rates and higher
paper costs drove most catalogers to shrink circulation in an effort to retain profits—an unsuccessful
endeavor for many competitors, who cither exited the channel or filed for bankruptcy protection this
year.

Wholesale segment sales declined 17% to $271.4 million due to the impact of the first quarter
divestiture of BHI. Sales for our remaining Wholesale businesses declined only modestly as sales
growth of premium seasonal decorations and candles, along with higher foodservice sales, was more
than offset by sales declines of home décor, which has experienced the negative impact of a declining
housing market.

Also of note within our segment performance is our commitment to organic strategic initiatives.
Two Sisters Gourmet is a smali direct selling company that “brings gourmet to everyday” with its
variety of sauces, dips, condiments and mixes, and Boca Java is an on-line marketer of premium “fresh
roasted-to-order gourmet coffee delivered 1o your door.” We conlinued to invest in these young
enterprises during fiscal year 2008/ believing in the growth opportunity of cach.

Corporate Goals '
Each year, we evaluate ourselves against three long-term corporate financial goals:
* Annual sales and earnings growth
* 7% 10 9% operating margir;s
* 15%-t return on average cquity

Profitable sales growth continued to be very challenging in fiscal 2008 as consumer spending on
discretionary items has been impacted by the downturn in the economy. Nevertheless, operating
management successfully grew gross margins across many of Blyth’s businesses, resulting in a 38%
increase in net earnings excluding unusual items even as sales were flat compared to last year. Qur
normalized operating margin of 8% improved from prior year. Return on average equity, also improved
over last year, was 15.8%, surpassing our goal.

Major Accomplishments '

We welcomed a new President to PartyLite Worldwide during fiscal 2008. Anne Butler, who had
ably headed PartyLite’s European, Mexican and Australian markets since joining the Company in 1999,
was promoted from her position of President, PartyLite International into the top job. Anne brought a
wealth of executive experience to ?arlyLite, having worked for over 25 years al leading direct selling
companies. In addition to her extensive knowledge and experience, Anne is committed 1o PartyLite’s
culture and values, and supporting our Field and Employees to lead the company to new heights.

We also bid farewell to a long-time board member and welcomed new talent to this group. Roger
Anderson retired in January, having served on Blyth’s board since we went public in 1994. Most
recently, he served as Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, as a
member of the Audit Committee and as lead outside director. 1 extend my personal thanks to Roger
for his service to the Company and our stockholders.



Anne Busquet joined our board in August. She is currently Principal of AMB Advisors, LLC, an
executive strategy and business development advisory firm and investor in start-up companies. She has
served as Chief Executive Officer of IAC Local and Media Services, a division of Inter ActiveCorp, and
as a division executive at American Express Company. Anne served on the Audit Committee during
fiscal year 2008 and wus also recently appointed to the Nominating & Corporate Governance
Committee.

Anne joins three other capable women serving on Blyth’s Board of Directors. In recognition of the
attention 1o the importance of gender diversily in our board, the Boston Club, an organization for
high-achieving executive and professional women, honored Blyth in November 2007 with its Corporate
Salute award. Blyth’s slate of corporate executives reflects similar diversity, with three of our nine
corporate officers being women.

As Blyth continues to evolve, our senior management team and Board of Directors remain
committed to the values upon which I built this company: offer superior products and customer service,
operate under uncompromised ethical principals and support the entrepreneurial spirit that drives
innovation and leadership development throwghout Blyth. Together, we work to ensure that these
values remain an integral part of our organization’s culture.

Robert B. Goergen
Chairman of the Board
April 9, 2008
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PART 1
Item 1. Business i

(a) General Development of Busirlless

Blyth, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company,” which may be referred to as “we,” “us”
or “our”} is a home expressions company compeling primarily in the home fragrance and decorative
accessories imdustry. We design, market and distribule an extensive array of candles, decorative
accessorics, seasonal decorations and household convenience items, as well as chafing fuel, tabletop
lighting and accessories for the “away from home” or foodservice trade. Our sales and operations take
place primarily in the United States, Canada and Europe, with additional activity in Mexico, Australia
and the Far East. |

i
Sale of Mass Channel Candle Busliness

In April 2007, we sold certain‘assets and liabilities of our Blyth HomeScents International North
American mass channel candle business (“BHI NA"), which was part of the Wholesale segment. The
net assets were sold for $25.3 mitlion, inclusive of proceeds from the sale of overstock inventory of $1.3
million. Of this amount, $21.8 million was received at closing and a total of $3.5 million was received
subsequently in fiscal 2008.

Additional Information ,

Additional information is avail:able on our website, www blyth.com. Qur annual reports on Form
10-K, guarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments thereto filed
or furnished pursuant (o the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available on our website free of
charge as soon as reasonably practicable following submission 1o the SEC. Also available on our
website are our corporate governance guidelines, code of conduct, and the charters for the audit
commitiee, compensation commiltee, and nominating and corporate governance committee, each of
which is available in print 10 any shareholder who makes a request to Blyth, Inc,, One East Weaver
Street, Greenwich, CT 06831, Attention: Secretary. The information posted to wwwblyth.com, however,
is not incorporated herein by reference and is not a part of this report.

(b) Financial Information about S!egments

We report our financial rcsulls in three business segments: the Direct Selling segment, the Catalog
& Internet segment and the Wholesale segment. These segments accounted for approximately 59%,
18% and 23% of consolidated net 5ales, respectively, for fiscal 2008. Financial information relating to
these business segments for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 appears in Note 17
of the consolidated financial statements and is incorporated herein by refcrence.

{c) Narrative Description of Business
Direct Selling Segment

{

In fiscal 2008, the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 59% of total sales. Qur
principal Direct Selling business is ]PartyLi[e, which focuses on premium candles and home fragrance
products and related decorative accessories. In May 2007, Anne M. Butler was promoted to President,
PartyLite Worldwide. Ms. Butler previously served as President, PartyLite International since 2003.
PartyLite® brand products are marketed in North America, Europe and Australia through a network of
independent sales consultants using the party plan method of direct selling. These products include
fragranced and non-fragranced candles, bath products and a broad range of related accessories.




In fiscal 2006, we acquired a party plan company called Two Sisters Gourmet, which is focused on
gourmet food. Two Sisters Gourmet represents less than 1% of total sales of the Direci Selling
segment. In the future, we may pursue other direct selling business opporlunities.

United States Market

Within the United States market, PartyLite brand products are scld directly to consumers through
a network of independent sales consultants. These consultants are compensated on the basis of
ParlyLite product sales at parties organized by them and parties organized by consultants recruited by
them. Over 23,000 independent sales consultants located in the United States were selling PartyLite
products at January 31, 2008, PartyLite products are designed, packaged and priced in accordance with
their premium quality, exclusivity and the distribution channel through which they are sold,

International Market

In fiscal 2008, PartyLite products were sald internationally by more than 22,000 independent sales
consultants located outside the United States. These consultants were the exclusive distributors of
PartyLite brand products internationally. The following were PartyLite’s international markets during
fiscal 2008: Australia, Austria, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Mexico, Norway,
Switzerland and the United Kingdom.

We support our independent sales consultants with inventory management and control and satisfy
delivery requirements through on-line ordering, which is available to all independent sales consultants
in the United Stales and Canada, as well as in most of Europe.

Catalog & Internet Segment

In fiscal 2008, this segment represented approximately 18% of total sales, We design, market and
distribute a wide range of household convenience items, personalized gifts, photo storage products, as
well as coffee and tea, within this segment. These products are sold through the Catalog and Internet
distribution channel under brand names that include Boca Java®, Easy Comforts®, Exposures®, Home
Marketplace®, Miles Kimball® and Walter Drake®.

Wholesale Segment

In fiscal 2008, this segment represented approximately 23% of total sales. Products within this
segment include candles and related accessories, seasonal decorations, and home décor products such
as picture frames, lamps and textiles. In addition, chafing fuel and tabletop lighting products and
accessories for the “away from home” or foodservice trade are sold in this segment. Our wholesale
products are designed, packaged and priced o satisfy the varying demands of relailers and consumers
within each distribution channel.

In April 2007, we sold certain assets and liabilities of our BHI NA mass channel candle business,
which was part of the Wholesale segment. The net assets were sold for $25.3 million, inclusive of
proceeds from the sale of overstock inventory of $1.3 million. Of this amount, $21.8 million was
received at closing and a total of $3.5 million was received subsequently in fiscal 2008. Sales within the
BHI NA business were reduced from $93.2 million in fiscal 2007 to $39.3 million in fiscal 2008 as a
resuft of this sale.

Products sold in the Wholesale segment in the United States are marketed through the premium
consumer wholesale channels and sold to independent gift shops, specialty chains, department stores,
food and drug outlets, mass relailers, hotels, restaurants and independent foodservice distributors
through independent sales representatives, our key account managers and our sales managers. Qur
sales force supports our customers with product calalogs and samples, merchandising programs and




selective fixtures. Our sales force also receives training on the marketing and proper use of our
products.

1
Product Brand Names

The key brand names under which our Direct Selling segment products are sold are:

PartyLite®
Well Being by PartyLite®

Two Sisters Gourmet® I
I

The key brand names under which our Catalog & Internet segment products are sold are:

Boca Java® | Home Markeiplace®
Easy Comforts® Miles Kimball®
Exposures® Walter Drake®

1

The key brand names under which our Wholesale segment products are sold are:

Ambria® , Colonial at HOME®
CBKS® ! HandyFuel®

Colonial Candle® Seasons of Cannon Falls®
Cotonial Candle of Cape Cod® Sterno®

New Product Development

|
Concepts for new products and product line extensions are directed to the marketing departments
of our business units from within all areas of the company, as well as from our independent sales
representatives and worldwide product manufacturing partners. The new product development process
may include technical research, consumer market research, fragrance studies, comparative analyses, the
formulation of engineering specifications, feasibility studies, safely assessments, testing and evaluation,

Manufacturing, Sourcing and Distribution

In all of our business segments, management continuously works to increase value and lower costs
through increased efficiency in worldwide production, sourcing and distribution practices, the
application of new technologies and process control systems, and consolidation and rationalization of
equipment and facilities. Net capital expenditures over the past five years have totaled $87.3 million
and are targeted to technological advancements and normal maintenance and replacement projects at
our manufacturing and distribution facilities. We have also closed several facilities and written down the
values of certain machinery and e'quipment in recent years in response to changing market conditions.

We manufacture most of our candles using highly automated processes and technologies, as well as
certain hand crafting and finishing, and source nearly all of our other products, primarily from
independent manufacturers in the: Pacific Rim, Europe and Mexico. Many of our products are
manufactured by others based on our design specifications, making our global supply chain approach
critically important to new product development, quality control and cost management, We have also
built a network of stand-alone highly automated distribution facilities in our core markets.

Technological Advancements |

We continue to see the benefit of our substantial investment in technological initiatives,
particularly Internet-based ordering technology. An Internet-based order-entry and business
management system is available to all PartyLite independent sales consultants worldwide. By fiscal 2008
year-end, show orders placed via the PartyLite extranet had increased to over 95% of total show orders




in the United States and over 80% of total show orders internationally. The extranet’s automated
features climinate errors common on hand-writien paper forms and speed orders through processing
and distribution, improving customer service. Furthermore, by easing the administrative workioad and
providing tools with which to track sales and programs, the extranet has helped Partylite independent
sales consultants build their businesses more efticiently. The improved accuracy of the automated
system also results in administrative savings for us.

Customers

Customers in the Direct Selling segment are individual consumers served by independent siles
consultants. Sales within the Catalog & Iniernet segment are also made directly to consumers.
Wholesale segment customers include independent gift and department stores, garden centers, mass
merchandisers, food and drug stores, specialty chains, foodservice distribulors, hotels and restaurants.
No single customer accounts for 10% or more of sales.

Competition

All of our business segments are highly competitive, both in terms of pricing and new product
introductions. The worldwide market for home expressions products is highly fragmented with
numerous suppliers serving one or more of the distribution channels served by us. In addition, we
compele for direct selling consultants with other direct selling companies. Because there are relatively
low barriers to entry in all of our business segments, we may face increased competition from other
companics, some of which may have subsiantially greater financial or other resources than those
available to us. Competition includes compantes selling candles manufactured at lower costs outside of
the United States. Moreover, certain competitors focus on a single geographic or product market and
attempt to gain or maintain market share solely on the basis of price.

Employees

As of January 31, 2008, we had approximately 3,200 full-time employees, of whom approximately
13% were based outside of the United States. Approximately 7% of our employees are non-salaried.
We do not have any unionized employees. We believe that relations with our employees are good.
Since our formation in 1977, we have never experienced a work stoppage.

Raw Materials

All of the raw materials used for our candles, home fragrance products and chafing fuel,
principally petroleum-based wax, fragrance, glass containers and corrugate, have historically been
available in adequate supply from multiple sources. In fiscal 2008, substantial cost increases for certain
raw materials, such as paraffin, dyethelene glycol (DEG) and ethanol, as well as aluminum and paper,
negatively impacted profitabilily of certain products in all three segments.

Seasonality

Our business is highly seasonal, and our net sales are strongest in the third and fourth fiscal
quarters due Lo increased shipments to meet year-end holiday season demand for our products. For
additional information, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Seasonality.”

Trademarks and Patents

We own and have pending numerous trademark and patent registrations and applications in the
United States Patent and Trademark Office related to our products. We also register certain trademarks




and palents in other countries. While we regard these trademarks and patents as valuable assets to our
business, we are not dependent on any single trademark or patent or group thereof.

Envirenmental Law Compliance

Most of the our manufacturing, distribution and research operations arc affected by federal, state,
local and international environmental taws relating to the discharge of materials or otherwise 1o the
protection of the cnvironment. We have made and intend to continue to make expenditures necessary
to comply with applicable environmental laws, and do not believe that such cxpenditures will have a
material effect on our capital expendilures, earnings or competitive pasition.

(d) Financial Information about ¢eographic Areas

For information on net sales from external customers attributed to the United States and foreign
countries and on long-lived assets located in the United States and outside the United States, see Note |
17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, |
|
Item 1A. Risk Factors :
We may be unable (o increase sale:s or identify suitable acquisition candidates.

Our ability to increase sales depends on numerous factors, including market acceptance of existing
products, the successful introduction of new products, growth of consumer discretionary spending, our
ability 1o recruit new independent sales consullants, sourcing of raw materials and demand-driven
increases in production and distribution capacity. Business in all of our segments is driven by consumer
preferences. Accordingly, there can be no assurances that our current or future products will maintain
or achieve market acceptance. Qur sales and earnings results can be negatively impacted by the
worldwide economic environment, particularly the United States, Canadian and European economies.
There can be no assurances that our financial results will not be materially adversely affected by these
factors in the future.

Our historical growth has been due in part to acquisitions, and we continue (o consider additional
strategic acquisitions. There can be no assurances that we will continue to identify suitable acquisition
candidates, consummale acquisitions on terms favorable to us, finance acquisitions or successfully
infegrate acquired operations. |

We are affected by risks associated with international sales and foreign-sourced products.

Qur international sales growthI rate has outpaced that of our United States growth rate in recent
years. Moreover, we source a portion of our products in all of our business segments from independent
manufacturers in the Pacific Rim, Europe and Mexico. For these reasons, we are subject to the risks
associated with international manufacturing and sales, including fluctuations in currency exchange rates;
economic or political instability; transportation costs and delays; difficulty in maintaining quality
control; restrictive governmental actions; nationalizations; the laws and policies of the United States,
Canada and certain European countries affecting the importation of goods {including duties, quotas
and taxes); and the trade and tax laws of other nations.

We may be unable to respond to changes in consumer preferences.

Qur ability to properly manage our inventories is an important factor in our operations. The
nature of our products and the rapid changes in customer preferences leave us vulnerable 1o an
increased risk of inventory obsolescence. Excess inventories can result in lower gross margins due to the
excessive discounts and markdowns that might be necessary 10 reduce inventory levels. Our ability to

meet future product demand in all'of our business segments will depend upon our success in sourcing
|



adequate supplies of our products; bringing new production and distribution capacity on line in a timely
manner; improving our ability to forecast product demand and fulfill customer orders promptly;
improving customer service-oriented management information systems; and training, motivating and
managing new employees. The failure of any of the above could result in a material adverse effect on
our financial results.

We are dependent upon sales by independent consultants.

A significant portion of our products are markeled and sold through the direct selling method of
distribution, where products are primarily marketed and sold by independent consultants to consumers
without the use of retail establishments, This distribution system depends upon the successful
recruitment, retention and motivation of a large number of independent consultants to offset frequent
turnover. The recruitment and retention of independent consultants depends on the competitive
environment among direct selling companies and on the general labor market, unemployment levels,
¢conomic conditions, and demographic and cultural changes in the workforce, The motivation of our
consultants depends, in large part, upon the effectivencss of our compensation and promotional
programs, its competiliveness compared with other direct selling companies, the introduction of new
products, and the ability to advance through the consultant ranks,

Qur sales are directly tied to the levels of activity of our consultants, which is a part-time working
activity for many of them. Activity levels may be affected by the degree to which a market is penetrated
by the presence of our consultants, the amount of average sales per party, the amount of sales per
consultant and the mix of high-margin and low-margin products, and the activities and actions of our
product line and our competitors.

Our profitability may be affected by shortages of raw materials.

Certain raw malerials could be in short supply due to price changes, capacity, availabilily, a change
in requirements, weather or other factors, including supply disruptions due to production or
transportation delays. While the price of crude oil is only one of several faclors impacting the price of
petroleum way, it is possible that recent fluctuations in oil prices may have a material adverse affect on
the cost of petroleum-based products used in the manufacture or transportation of our products,
particularly in the Direct Selling and Wholesale business segments. In recent years, substantial cost
increases for certain raw malerials, such as paraffin, dyethelene glycol (DEG) and ethanal, as well as
aluminum and paper, negatively impacted profitability of certain products in all three segments.

We are dependent upon our key corporate management personnel.

Our success depends in part on the contributions of our key corporate management, including our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Robert B. Goergen, as well as the members of the Office of the
Chairman: Robert H. Barghaus, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Robert B. Goergen, Ir.,
Vice President and President, Multi-Channe! Group; and Anne M. Butler, Vice President and
President, PartyLite Worldwide. We do not have employment contracts with any of our key corporate
management personnel, except the Chairman and Chicf Executive Officer, nor do we maintain any key
person life insurance policies. The loss of any of the key corporate management personnel could have a
material adverse effect on our financial position and operating results.

Our businesses are subject to the risks from increased competition.

Our business is highly compelitive both in terms of pricing and new product introductions. The
worldwide markel for home expressions products is highly fragmented with numerous suppliers serving
one or more of the distribution channels served by us. In addition, we compele for independent sales
consultants with other direct sclling companies. Because there are relatively low barriers to entry in all




of our business segments, we may face increased competition from other companies, some of which
may have substantially greater financial or other resources than those available to us. Competition
includes companies selling candles manufactured at lower costs outside of the United States. Moreover,
certain competitors focus on a single geographic or product market and attempt to gain or maintain
market share solely on the basis of price.

We may be adversely affected by proposed FTC regulations.

i

In April 2000, the U.S. Federal Trade Commission issued a notice of proposed rutemaking that if
implemented, as originally proposed, will regulate all sellers of “business opportunities” in the United
States. The proposed rule, as originally proposed, would, among other things, require all sellers of
business opportunities, which would likely include PartyLite and Two Sislers Gourmei, to implement a
seven-day waiting period before entering into an agreement with a prospeclive business opportunity
purchaser and provide all prospective business opportunity purchasers with substantial disclosures in
wriling regarding the business opportunily and the company. In March 2008, the FTC revised the
proposed rulemaking to remove from the coverage of the rule certain types of direct selling companies,
including PartyLite and Two Sisters Gourmet, Based on information currently available, we anticipate
that the final rule may require seve;ral years to become final and effective, and may differ substantially
from the rule as currently proposed.

We depend upon our information t:echnology systems.

Qur information technology systems depend on global communications providers, telephone
systems, hardware, software and other aspects of Internet infrastructure that have experienced
significant system failures and outages in the past, Our systems are susceptible to outages due to fire,
floods, power loss, telecommunications failures, break-ins and similar events, Despite the
implementation of network security measures, our systems are vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins
and similar disruptions from unzmt%lorized tampering with our systerns. The occurrence of these or
other events could disrupt or damage our information technology systems and inhibit internal
operations, the ability to provide customer service or the ability of customers or sales personnel to
access our information sysiems.

Changes in our effective tax rate may have an adverse effect on our reported earnings.

Qur effective tax rate and the amount of our provision for income laxes may be adversely effected
by a number of factors, mcluding:

* the jurisdictions in which profits are determined to be earned and taxed;

* adjustments to estimated taes upen finalization of various tax returns;

* increases in expenses not deductible for tax purposes;

* changes in available tax credits;

* changes in share-based combensation expense;

* changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities;

* changes in accounting standards or tax laws and regulations, or interpretations thereof;

* the resolution of issues arising from uncertain positions and tax audits with various tax
authorities; and '

 penalties andfor interest expense that we may be required to recognize on liabilities associated
with uncertain tax positions.




Item IB. Unresolved Staff Comments

None,

Ttem 2. Properties

The following table sets forth the location and approximate square footage of our major
manufacturing and distribution facilities:

Location

Arndell Park, Australia .. ...
Batavia, [llinois. ... .......

Cannon Falls, Minnesota . . . .
Carol Stream, Illinois ... ...
Cumbria, England . . . ... ...

Deerfield Beach, Florida . . ..

Elkin, North Carolina ... ...

Heidelberg, Germany . ... ..
Monterrey, Mexico .. ... ...
Ontario, Canada . .. .. ... ..
Orlando, Florida . . . ... .. ..

Oshkosh, Wisconsin ... ....
Texarkana, Texas . . ........

Tilburg, Netherlands .. ... ..
Union City, Tennessee . . . . . .

Approximate Squarce

Fect

Use Business Segment Owned Leased
Distribution Direct Selling — 38,000
Manufacturing and  Direct Selling and Wholesale 486,000 —
Research &
Development
Distribution Wholesale — 192,000
Distribution Direct Selling -— 051,000
Manufacturing and  Direct Selling 90,000 —
related distribution
Roasting, Catalog & Internet — 22,000
packaging
and distribution
Manufacturing and  Wholesale 699,000 —
related distribution
Distribution Direct Selling — 6,000
Distribution Direct Selling — 45,000
Distribution Direct Selling — 22,000
Warehouse and Direct Selling — 19,000
distribution
Distribution Catalog & Internet ~— 386,000
Manufacturing and  Wholesale 154,000 65,000
related distribution
Distribution Direct Selling - 442,500 —
Warehouse and Wholesale 360,000 94,000
distribution

Our executive and administrative offices and outlet stores are generally located in leased space
(except for certain offices located in owned space). Most of our properties are currently being utilized

for their intended purpose.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. In our opinion, existing
litigation will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash

flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None




|
: PART 11
Ytem 5. Market for Regisirant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matiers and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol BTH. The price
range for the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange was as follows:

High Low

Fiscal 2007

First Quarter ... ... , ............................... $23.12  $20.00

Second Quarter . . ... . . e e 21.98 17.07

Third Quarter .. ... ... e e e 26.25 16.29

Fourth Quarter .. ... e e 26,15 2050
Fiscal 2008

First QUArter . . o oot e e e e e e e e $27.31  $19.87

Second QUAME .. .. it e e e 30.22 2232

Thitd Quarter . ... .ot e e 23.50 16.00

Fourth Quarler .. ... . ... . . e 2403 17.63

As of March 31, 2008, there were 1,726 registered holders of record of the Common Stock.

On April 8, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a regular semi-annual cash dividend in the
amount of $0.27 per share payable in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. During fiscal 2008 and 2007,
the Board of Directors declared dividends as follows: $0.27 per share payable in the sccond quarter of
fiscal 2008; $0.27 per share payable in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008; $0.23 per share payable in the
second quarter of fiscal 2007; and $0.27 per share payable in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.
Currently, we expecl 1o pay semi-annual cash dividends in the future. Qur ability 1o pay cash dividends
in the future is dependent upon, dmong other things, our ability to operate profitably and to generate
s;gmﬁcanl cash flows from operations in excess of investment and financing requirements that may
increase in the future 1o, for ex“.mplt, fund new acquisitions or retire debt,

The following table sets forth, for the equity compensation plan categories listed below,
information as of January 31, 2008:

Equity Compensation Pian Information

, (a) (b) ()
i Number of sccurities
\ Weighted-average remaining avaitable for
Number of sccurities to excrcise price of future issuance under
be isssed upen excrcisc  outstanding eptions, equity compensation plans
! of outstanding options, warrants and (cxcluding securities
Plan Category | warrants and rights(1) rights(1) reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans appxoved
by security holders .. ........... 447,400 $27.01 3,691,173
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders ... ... —

Total ................... L. 447,400 2701 3.691,173

|

(1) The information in this column excludes 2,500 shares of restricted stock and 306,620 restricted
stock units oulstanding as of January 31, 2008.

!
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The following table sets forth certain information concerning the repurchases of Common Stock
made by us during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, some of which were made pursuant to our Rule
10b5-1 trading plan.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Sccurities(1)

Total Number of

Shares Purchased Maximum Nuomber
as Part of of Shares that May
Average Price Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Paid per Announced Plans Under the Plans
Perivd Shares Purchased Share or Programs or Programs
November 1, 2007-November 788,623 §18.21 788,623 3,069,969
30,2007, ... ...l
December 1, 2007-December 65,800 $i8.6Y 65,800 9,004,169
31,2007, ... Ll
January 1, 2008-January 31, 054,904 $20.45 654,504 8,349,265
2008 ...
Total ........... . 1,509,327 $19.20 1,509,327 8,349,265

(1) On September 10, 1998, our Beard of Directors approved a share repurchase program pursuant to
which we were originally authorized o repurchase up to 1.0 million shares of Common Stock in
open market transactions. From June 1999 to June 2006, the Board of Directors increased the
authorization under this repurchase program five times (on June 8, 1999 to increase the authorizalion
by 1.0 million shares to 2.0 million shares; on March 30, 2000 to increase the authorization by
1.0 million shares to 3.0 million shares; on December 14, 2000 to increase the authorization by
1.0 million shares 1o 4.0 million shares; on April 4, 2002 to increase the authorization by 2.0 millicn
shares to 6.0 million shares; and on Junc 7, 2006 to increase the authorization by 6.0 million shares to
12.0 million shares). On December 13, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized a new repurchase
program, for 6.0 million shares, which will become effective after we exhaust the authorized amount
under the old repurchase program. As of January 31, 2008, we have purchased a total of 9,650,735
shares of Common Stock under the old repurchase program. The repurchase programs do not have
expiration dates. We intend to make further purchases under the repurchase programs from time to
time.
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Performance Graph

The performance graph set forth below reflects the yearly change in the cumulative total
stockholder return (price appreciation and reinvestment of dividends) on our Common Stock compared
1o the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 400 Midcap Index for the five fiscal years ended Janvary 31, 2008.
The graph assumes the investment of $100 in Commmon Stock and the reinvestment of all dividends
paid on such Common Stock into additional shares of Common Stock and such indexes over the five-
year period. We believe thal we ate unique and do not have comparable industry peers. Since our
competitors are lypically not public companies or are themselves subsidiaries or divisions of public
companies engaged in muitiple lines of business, we believe thal il is not possible 10 compare our
performance against that of our competition. In the absence of a satisfaclory peer group, we believe
that it is appropriate to compare us to companies comprising the S&P 400 Midcap Indexes.

} Blyth, Inc. Performance Graph
Comparison of Total Stockholder Return

300
250
200 + ’//a/”t‘\ﬁ
- -
i IR
150 . ’)/i__-_ - -
100+ W™ "~
- — - — -8
50 +
0
1/31/2003(1/31/20041/31/2005(1/31/2006 | 1/31/2007 | 1/31/2008
= l— Blyth 100 128 122 86 84 90
- == 58P 500 100 135 143 158 181 177
—4—S&P 400 Midcap 100 143 159 194 209 205
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[temn 6. Selected Financial Data

Sel forth below are selecled summary consolidated financial and operating data for fiscal years
2004 through 2008, which have been derived from our audited financial statementis for those vears. The
information presented below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements,
including the notes therelo, appearing elsewhere in this report.

Year ended January 31,
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(In thousands, except per share and percent data)

Statement of Earnings Data:(1)

Netsales ..o e $1,286,937  $1,301,365  $1,254,26]1  $1,220,611  $1,164,950
Grossprofit .. ... .. ... . . ... e 669,512 694,588 635,785 596,669 615,471
Operating profit(2}3) . . . .. .. .. o o 133,427 144,783 45,167 15,644 30,887
Inlerest CXpense . .. .. i e e e 13,889 18,936 20,602 19,074 15,540

Earnings from contiruing operations before income taxes,
minority interest and cumulative effect of accounting

change . ... ... L 119,806 128,268 26,444 5,369 21,725
Earnings from continuing operations before minority

interest and cumulative effect of accounting change . . . 75,8606 82,100 20,065 2,705 11,178
Earnings from continuing operations . . ......... ... 75,774 82,364 20,531 2,555 11,072
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations(4) . ... ... 10,577 14,150 4,326 (105,728) —
Netearnings (lossy . . ... ... ... ... ... .. 86,351 96,514 24,857 (103,173) 11,072
Basic nct earnings from continuing operations

per comMmOnN ShAIC . . . o vttt it e e $ 1.66 § 191§ 050 § 006 % 0.29
Basic net earnings (loss) from discontinued aperations per

common share . . . ., ... ... . e 3 023 % 033 $% 0i1 $ (2.66) % —
Net carnings (loss) per basic common share . . ... ... .. $ 189 § 224 % 06! § (259 § 0.29

Diluted net earnings from continuing operations per

commonshare . ... ... . Lo o b3 165 % 1.8¢ % 050 3 006 § 0.28
Diluted net earnings (loss) lrom discontinued operations
percommonshare . ... ... .. ... ... 5 023 % 032 % 011 s (2.64) § —_—
Net earnings (loss) per diluted common share . . ... . .. $ 188 % 222 % 060 $ (238) % 0.28
Cash dividends paid, per share . . ... ............. $ 028 § 036 % 044 § 050 § 0.54
Basic weighted average number of common shares
outstanding . . . ... L L e 45,771 43,136 40,956 39,781 38,592
Diluted weighted average number of commeon shares
outstanding . . .. L L e e e 46,027 43,556 41,176 40,057 38,926
Operating Data:
Crossprofit margin . .. ..., . ... . .. ..., 52.0% 53.4% 50.7% 48.9% 52.8%
Operating profit margin .. ... ................. 10.4% 11.1% 3.6% 1.3% 2.7%
Net capital expenditures . . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... $ 2193 § 20976 $ 17,272 0§ 17714 0§ 9421
Deprecration and amortization ... ... ... .. ... ..., 35,954 35.600 35,875 34,630 31974
Balance Sheet Data:
Totalassers ... ....... .. ... ... ... $1,127,963  $1,075820 $1,116520 § 774,638 § 667,422
Totaldebt .. ... ... .. ... ... 293,886 287,875 371,742 215,779 158,815
Total stockholders equity . . ... ............. ... 588,970 521349 493,824 363,693 299,668

(1) Statement of Earnings Data includes the results of operations for periods subsequent 1o the respective purchase acquisitions
of Miles Kimball Company acquired in April 2003 and Walter Drake acquired in December 2003, none of which
individually had a material effcet on our results of operations in the period during which they occurred or therealter.

(2) Fiscal 2004 pre-tax carnings include restructuring and impairment charges of $23.8 million related to mannfacturing
cquipment impairment, closure of our Hyannis manufacturing facility, the discontinuance of the Canterbury® brand, and the
closure of five of our candle outlet stores. Fiscal 2007 earnings include restructuring charges recorded in the Wholesale and
Direct Selling segments of $24.0 million. Fiscal 2008 earnings include restructuring charges recorded in the Wholesale and
Direct Selling segments of $2.3 million. (See note 5 to the Conselidated Financial Statements.)

(3) Fiscal 2006, 2007, and 2008 pre-tax earnings inclede goodwill and other intangibles impairment charges of $33.3 million and
$48.8 million in the Wholesale segment and $49.2 million in the Catalog & Internet segment, respectively. (See Note 9 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

(4) In fiscal 2007, the Kaemingk, Edelman, Euro-Decor, Gies and Colony businesses were sold (See Note 4 to the
Consolidated FFinancial Statements.) The results of operations for these business units have been reclassified to discontinued
operations for all periods presented.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

|
The financial and business analysis helow provides information that we believe is relevant to an
assessment and understanding of our consolidated financial condition, changes in financial condition
and results of operations. This financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements set
forth in Item 8, :

Overview

Blyth is a designer and mdrketer of bome fragrance products and accessories, home décor,
seasonal decorations, household convemence items, personalized gifts and products for the foodservice
trade. We compete in the global home expressions industry, and our products can be found throughout
North America, Europe and Australia. Our financial results are reported in three segments—the Direct
Selling segment, the Catalog & Internet segment and the Wholesale segment. These reportable
segments are based on similarities in distribution channels, customers and management oversight.

Fiscal 2008 net sales arc comprised of an approximately $690 million Direct Selling business, an
approximately $210 million Catalog & Internet business and an approximately $270 mitlion Wholesale
business. Sales and ecarnings growih differ in each segment depending on geographic location, market
penetration, our relative market share and product and marketing execution, among other business
factors. Over the long term, all three segments should experience single-digit growtl, most likely within
the low to mid-single digil range, again depending on the business factors previously noted.

Cur current focus is driving sales growth of our brands so we may more fully leverage our
infrastructure. New product dcvelopment continues Lo be critical to all three segments of our business.
In the Direct Selling segment, monthly sales and productivity incentives are designed to attract, retain
and increase the earnings opportunity of independent sales consultants. In the Catalog & Internet
channel, product, merchandising and circulation strategy are designed to drive strong sales growth in
newer brands and expand the sales and customer base of our flagship brands. In the Wholesale
segment, sales initiatives are targeted to independent retailers and national accounts.

Sale of Mass Channel Candle Business
|

On April 27, 2007, we sold certain assets and liabilities of our BHI NA mass channel candle
business, which was part of the Wholesale segment. The net assets were sold for $25.3 million, inclusive
of proceeds from the sale of overstock inventory of $1.3 million. Of this amount, $21.8 million was
received at closing and a total of $3.5 million was received qubsequently in fiscal 2008. The sale
resulted in a pre-tax loss of $0.6 million, which is recorded in Administrative expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss). Sales within the BHI NA business declined from
$93.2 million in fiscal 2007 to $39.3 million in fiscal 2008 as a result of this sale.

Segments ‘

Within the Direct Selling segnhent, we design, manufacture or source, market and distribute an
extensive line of products including scented candles, candle-related accessories, fragranced bath gels,
body lotions and other fragranced products under the PartyLite® brand. We also operate a small direct
selling business, Two Sisters Gourmet, which is focused on gourmet food. All direct selling products are
sold directly to the consumer through a network of independent sales consultants using the party plan
method of direct selling. PartyLite brand products are sold in North America, Europe and Australia.
Two Sisters Gourmet® brand products are sold in North America.

|
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Within the Catalog & Internel segment, we design, source and market a broad range of household
convenience items, premium photo albums, frames, holiday cards, personalized gifts, kitchen accessories
and gourmet coffee and tea. These products are sold directly to the consumer under the Boca Java®,
Easy Comforts®, Exposures®, Home Marketplace®, Miles Kimball? and Walter Drake® brands. These
products are sold in North America.

Within the Wholesale segment, we design, manufacture or source, market and distribute an
extensive line of home fragrance products, candle-related accessories, seasonal decorations such as
ornaments and trim, and home décor products such as picture frames, lamps and textiles. Products in
this segment are sold primarily in North America Lo retailers in the premium and specialty markets
under the CBK#, Colonial Candle of Cape Cod®, Colonial at HOME® and Seasons of Cannon Falls®
brands. In addition, chafing fuel and tabletop lighting products and accessories for the “away from
home" or foodservice trade are sold through this segment under the Ambria®, HandyFuel® and
Sterno® brands.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicaled, the percenlage relationship to net sales
and the percentage increase or decrease of certain items included in our Consolidated Statements of
Earnings (L.oss):

Percenlage Increase {(Decrease)
from Prior Period

Percentage of Net Sales - -

o b Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2008
Years Ended January 31 Compared to Compared to
2006 2007 2008 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2007

Netsales. ... ... i i 100.0 100.0 100.0 (2.7) (4.6)
Costof goodssold . ........ ... ... ........ 493 511 472 0.9 (11.9)
Grossprofit. . ... ... ... . ... . . 507 489 528 (6.2) 32
Selling ... 328 336 348 0.4) (1.1)
Administrative . . .. .. ... 101 100 112 (2.9) 6.2
Operating profit .. .. ... .. ... ... ... ..... 3.6 13 27 N/M N/M
Earnings from continuing operations . . ... ....... 1.6 0.2 1.0 N/M N/M

N/M—Percent change from the prior year would not be meaningful in concluding on our performance.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Net sales decreased $55.6 million, or approximately 5%, from $1,220.6 million in fiscal 2007 to
$1,165.0 million in fiscal 2008. The decrease is a result of lower mass candle sales due to the sale of
BHI NA mass channel candle business in our Wholesale segment and a decrecase in PartyLile’s U.S,
sales. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in sales within both PartyLite’s European and
Canadian operations and the Catalog & Internet segment.

Net Sales—Direct Selling Segment

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment decreased $7.2 million, or 1%, from $694.0 million in fiscal
2007 to $686.8 million in fiscal 2008. PartyLite’s U.S. sales decreased approximately 15% compared to
prior year. Management believes Lhis sales decrease was driven by a decline in the number of sales
consultants as a result of increased channel competition, as well as fewer shows per consultant.

PariyLite Canada reported an approximately 13% increase versus the prior year in U.S. dollars, or
4% on a local currency basis. Sales in Canada increased due to a higher number of guesls per show
and shows per consultant.
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In PartyLite’s European markets, sales increased approximately 16% in U.S. doilars, driven by
strong sales in the newer markets and favorable foreign currency translation. On a local currency basis,
Partylite Europe sales increased approximately 5%. PartyLite Europe represented approximately 37%
of PartyLite’s worldwide net sales in fiscal 2007 compared to 42% in fiscal 2008.

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 57% of total Biyth net sales in
fiscal 2007 compared to 59% in fiscal 2008.

Net Sales—Catalog & internet :S'egmertr

Net sales in the Catalog & Internet segment increased $7.5 million, or 4%, from $199.3 million in
fiscal 2007 to $206.8 million in fisqal 2008. This increase is due to increased sales in our Miles Kimball
and Easy Comforts catalogs and sales growth in Boca Java.

Nelt sales in the Catalog & Internet segment accounted for approxlmdlely 16% of total Blyth net
sales in fiscal 2007 compared to 18% in fiscal 2008,

Net Sales—Wholesale Segment'

Net sales in the Wholesale segment decreased $55.8 million, or 17%, from $327.2 millien in fiscal
2007 10 $271.4 million in fiscal 2008. The decrease is a result of lower mass candle sales due to the sale
of the BHI NA business, as well as reduced sales in our home décor channel, which was adversely
impacted by the weak housing market. Partially offsetting these declines was an increase in sales for the
Sterno business of approximately 4% and in the seasonal décor business of 2%.

Net sales in the Wholesale segment represented approximately 27% of total Blyth net sales in
fiscal 2007 compared to 23% in fiscal 2008.

Blyth’s consolidated gross profit increased $18.8 million, or 3%, from $596.7 million in fiscal 2007
to $615.5 million in fiscal 2008. The gross profit margin increased from 48.9% in fiscal 2007 to 52.8%
in fiscal 2008. This increase from prior year is principally due to improved margin within the PartyLite
businesses and the sale of BHI NA, which had lower profit margins than Blyth’s overall tetal, and is
partially offset by continued higher commodity costs in ail businesses.
|

Blyth’s consolidated selling expense decreased $4.4 million, or approximately 1%, from
$409.7 million in fiscal 2007 10 $405.3 million in fiscal 2008. The decrease in selling expense relates (o
the reduced sales in the U.S. direct selling segment and the reduced sales due to the sale of BHI NA,
along with better cost management in many business units. Selling expense as a percentage of net sales
increased from 33.6% in fiscal 2007 to 34.8% in fiscal 2008. The increase in selling expense as a
percent of sales is primarily a result of sales decreasing al a greater rate than selling expenses.

Blyth consolidated administrative expenses increased $7.6 million, or 6%, from $122.5 million in
fiscal 2007 10 $130.1 million in fISCEll 2008. The increase in administralive expenses was primarily due to
severance charges and an impairment of a lease and other fixed asset impairments related to the sale
of BHI NA, partiaily offset in fiscal 2007 and 2008 by $5.2 million and $1.4 million, respectively, of
collections of notes receivable which had previously been reserved for as part of the Gies sale.
Administralive expenses as a percentage of sales were approximately 10.0% for fiscal 2007 and 11,2%
for fiscal 2008.

Impairment charges for goodv\;ill of $48.8 million were recognized in the Wholesale segment in
fiscal 2007. Impairment charges of $49.2 million for goodwill and other intangibles were recognized in
the Catalog & Internet segment in fiscal 2008, The amount recorded in fiscal 2007 was the result of
our decision to discontinue the sales of a new Sterno product, rising commodity costs and a continued

1
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decline in operating performance in the Sterno reporting unit, and a business restructuring which
resulted in a significantly changed near-term outlook of the business in the Wholesale premium
reporting unit. In fiscal 2008, as part of our annual impairment review, we assessed the recent
performance of the Miles Kimball business and its fiscal outlook. The Miies Kimball business
experienced lower revenue growth than anticipated and reduced operating margins due to higher
postage, paper and printing costs. This shortfall was primarily attributable to decreased consumer
spending due to changes in the Catalog & Internet business environment and an overall weak economic
climate. As a result, the goodwill and intangibles in the Catalog & Internet segment was determined o
be impaired. Accordingly, we recorded a non-cash pre-tax impairment charge of $49.2 million in fiscal
2008.

Blyth’s consolidated operating profit increased $15.3 million from $15.6 million in fiscal 2007 to
$30.9 mitlion in fiscal 2008. The increase is primarily due to higher profits within the Direct Selling
segment, in particular for PartyLite Europe and Canada, and reduced operating losses within the
Wholesale segment.

Operating Profit/Loss—Direct Selling Segment

Operating profit in the Direct Selling segment increased $11.8 million, or 14%, from $86.9 million
in fiscal 2007 to $98.7 million in fiscal 2008. The increase was primarily due to the impact of increased
sales within Partylite Europe and Canada, including the effects of stronger foreign currencies, partially
offset by reduced sales for Partylite U.S. and continued cost increases for wax and other commaodities.

Operating ProfitfLoss—Catalog & Internet Segment

Operating loss in the Catalog & Internet segment increased by $52.6 million, from a profit of
$3.7 million in fiscal 2007 to a loss of $48.9 million in fiscal 2008. This profit decline was primarily due
to the impairment charge for goodwill and other intangible assets of $49.2 million related to the Miles
Kimball business unit, higher postage, paper and printing costs within the Miles Kimball business and
an increase in selling expense of $3.1 million at Boca Java, primarily related to sales promotions.

Operating Profit/L.oss—Wholesale Seginent

Operating loss in the Wholesale segment decreased from $74.9 miliion in fiscal 2007 to
$19.0 million in fiscal 2008. Included in the loss for fiscal 2007 was the previously mentioned goodwill
impairment charge of $48.8 million. Also contributing 1o the improvement for fiscal 2008 was increased
operating profit at Sterno and Midwest of Cannon Falls businesses, totaling $8.2 million.

Interest expense decreased $3.6 million, or 19%, from $19.1 million in fiscal 2007 (o $15.5 million
in fiscal 2008, primarily due to a decrease in oulstanding debt.

Interest income increased $0.2 million, from $7.4 million in fiscal 2007 to $7.6 million in fiscal
2008, mainly due 1o higher amounts of cash and short-term investments held during fiscal 2008.

Foreign exchange and other reported income of $1.4 million in fiscal 2007 compared to a loss of
$1.3 million in fiscat 2008. The loss of $1.3 million in fiscal 2008 includes a $1.2 million impairment
charge related to an available-for-sale equity investment in RedEnvelope, Inc., whose decline in value
was deemed other than temporary, and a $0.9 million impairment charge on an Australian joint venture
investment accounted for under the equity method. Partially offsetting these charges in fiscal 2008 were
foreign exchange gains and other income of $0.8 million. Additional impairment charges may be -
required to write-off all or a portion of the RedEnvelope investment of $5.2 million (See Note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).
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Income 1ax expense increased $7.8 million from $2.7 million in fiscal 2007 to $10.5 million in fiscal
2008. The increase in income tax expense was primarily due to the increase in profit before tax and the
increase in our tax reserves for ongoing tax audits. This increase was partially offset by continued
strong foreign sourced earnings, which are taxed at a lower rate than U.S earnings. The offsets led to a
slight decrease in the effective tax rate from 49.6% in fiscal 2007 to 48.6% in fiscal 2008.

As a result of the foregoing, earnings from continuing operations increased $8.5 million, from
$2.6 miliion in fiscal 2007 to $11.1 million in fiscal 2008. Basic earnings per share from continuing
operations were $0.06 for fiscal 2007 compared 1o $0.29 for fiscal 2008. Diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations were $0.06 for fiscal 2007 compared to $0.28 for fiscal 2008.

The loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, for fiscal 2007 was $105.7 million, or $2.64 per
diluted share. The loss includes (a) a non-lax deductible loss of $18.4 million on the sale of the
Kaemingk business, (b) a non-tax deductible loss on the sale of the Edelman and Euro-Decor
businesses of $14.5 million, which includes a goodwill impairment charge of $16.7 million, {c) a nel of
tax loss on the sale of the Gies business of $28.0 million, which includes an impairment charge of
$31.1 million and {d) net of tax loss on sale of the Colony business of $19.9 million, which includes an
impairment charge of $28.6 million. The loss from discontinued operations includes an operating loss,
net of tax, of $24.9 million, or $0.62 per diluted share, for fiscal 2007. There were no discontinued
operations during fiscal 2008.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Net sales decreased $33.7 million, or approximately 3%, from $1,254.3 miilion in fiscal 2006 to
$1,220.6 million in fiscal 2007. The' decrease is a result of the sale of Impact Plastics in January 2006, a
decrease in PartyLite’s ULS. sales and lower mass candle sales in our Wholesale business. This decrease
was partially offset by an increase in sales within PartyLite’s European operations and the Catalog &
Internet segment as well as increased sales in our seasonal, home décor and Sterno Wholesale
businesses. |

Net Sales—Direct Selling Segment

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment decreased $10.1 million, or 1%, from $704.1 million in
fiscal 2006 to $694.0 million in fiscal 2007. PartylLite’s U.S. sales decreased approximately 12%
compared to prior year. Managemenl believes this sales decrease was driven by a decline in the number
of sales consullants as a result of increased channel competition, as well as fewer shows per consullant.
Additionally, fiscal 2006 sales benefited from the reversal of a contingent reserve in the amount of
$5.5 million for a settlement of an unclaimed property matter associated with gift cards sold since the
inception of the gift card program in the Direct Selling business.

PartyLite Canada reported an approximately 3% increase versus the prior year in U.S. dollars.
Sales in Canada increased due to a higher number of guests per show and shows per consultant,
partially offsel by a decrease in thé number of consultants.

In PartyL.ite’s European markets, sales increased approximately 11% in U.S. dollars, driven by
strong sales in the newer markets. On a local currency basis PartyLite Europe sales increased
approximately 9%. PartyLite Europe represented approximately 37% of PartyLite’s worldwide net sales
in fiscal 2007 compared to 32% in fiscal 2006.

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 57% of total Blyth net sales in
fiscal 2007 compared to 56% in fiscal 20006.
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Net Sales—Catalog & Internet Segment

Net sales in the Catalog & Internel seginent increased $12.0 million, or 6%, from $187.3 millicn in
fiscal 2006 1o $199.3 million in fiscal 2007. This increase 1s due to increased sales In our Walier Drake,
Easy Comforts and Exposures catalogs and accretive sales from the acquisition of Boca Java, which was
acquired in August 2005,

Nel sales in the Catalog & Internet segment accounted for approximately 16% of Blyth's total net
sales in fiscal 2007 compared to 15% in fiscal 2006.

Net Sales—Wholesale Seginent

Net sales in the Wholesale segment decreased $35.6 million, or 10%, from $362.8 million in fiscal
2006 1o $327.2 million in fiscal 2007. The decrease is due (0 lower sales in our mass candle business
and the loss of sales due to the divestiture of Impact Plastics in January 2006, which were partially
offset by increased sales in the seasonal, home décor and Sterno businesses.

Net sales in the Wholesale segment represented approximately 27% of Lotal Blyth net sales in
fiscal 2007 compared 1o 29% in fiscal 2006.

Blyth's consolidated gross profit decreased $39.1 million, or 6%, from $635.8 million in fiscal 2006
o $596.7 million in fiscal 2007. The gross profit margin decreased from 50.7% in fiscal 2006 1o 48.9%
in fiscal 2007. This decrease from prior year is principally due to lower PartyLite U.S. sales,
restructuring charges of $19.7 million in the Wholesale segment and $2.8 million in the Direct Selling
segment, and higher commaodity costs,

Blyth’s consolidated selling expense decreased $1.6 million, or approximately 1%, from
$411.3 million in fiscal 2006 1o $409.7 million in fiscal 2007. The decrease in selling expense relates to
the reduced sales in the U.S. direct selling and mass candle businesses, along with tighter cost controls
in many business unils, partially offset by restructuring charges in the Wholesale and Direct Selling
segmenl. Selling expense as a percenlage of net sales increased from 32.8% in fiscal 2006 to 33.6% in
fiscal 2007. The increase in selling expense as a percent of sales is a result of sales decreasing at a
greater rate than selling expenses.

Blyth consolidated administrative expenses decreased $3.6 million, or 3%, from $126.1 million in
fiscal 2006 to $122.5 million in fiscal 2007. The decrease in administrative expenses versus the prior
year was primarily due to non-recurring expenses related Lo the proposed spin-off of the Wholesale
segment {(which was not completed) and the loss on sale of Impact Plastics of $1.6 million included in
fiscal 2006, Additionally, in fiscal 2007 we collected $5.2 million for a note receivable which had been
reserved for as part of the Gies sale. Administrative expenses as a percentage of sales were
approximately 10% for both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007.

Goodwill impatrment charges of $53.3 million and $48.8 million were recognized in the Wholesale
sepment in fiscal 2006 and 2007, respectively. The charge in f{iscal 2006 was the result of a substantial
decline in the operating performance of the reporting units when compared to prior years’ results and
budgeted expectations. The amount recorded in fiscal 2007 was the result of our decision to discontinue
the sales of a new product, rising commaodity costs and a continued decline in operating performance in
the Sterno reporling unit, and a business restructuring resulted in a significantly changed near-lterm
outlook of the business in the Wholesale premium reportling unit. The charges incurred in fiscal 2007
included the write-off of the remaining goodwill balances within the Wholesale segment (See
“—Critical Accounting Policies” and Note 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis).
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Blyth’s consolidated operating profit decreased $29.6 million from $45.2 million in fiscal 2006 to
$15.6 million in fiscal 2007. The deécrease is related to reduced sales in our PartyLite U.8. business, the
previously mentioned goodwill impairment charges, restructuring charges in our North American mass
candle business and Direct Selling segment and higher commodity costs throughout our businesses.

Operating Profit{Loss—Direct Selling Segment

Operating profit in the Direct Selling scgment decreased $20.8 million, or 19%, from
$107.7 million in fiscal 2006 to $86.9 million in fiscal 2007. The decrease was primarily driven by the
previously mentioned sales shortfall of PartyLite U.S., lower gross profit due to increased commodity
costs and restructuring charges in fiscal 2007. Additionally, in fiscal 2006 we benefited from the
previously mentioned reversal of a contingent reserve of $5.5 million for the settlement of an
unclaimed property matter.

Operating Profit/Loss—Catalog & Internet Segment

Operating profit in the Catalog & Inlernet segment increased from a loss of $0.4 million in fiscal
2006 to a gain of $3.7 million in fiscal 2007. The improvement over the prior vear is primarily due to
increased sales from the catalog titles previously mentioned and reduced promotional spending.

Operating Profit/Loss—Wholesale Segment

Operating loss in the Wholesale segment increased from $62.1 million in fiscal 2006 to
$74.9 million in fiscal 2007. The increased loss is primarily related to the $20.1 million in restructuring
charges in the North American mass candle business, decreased sales in the mass candle business and
higher commodity costs. Additionally, included in the loss for fiscal 2006 and 2007 are the previously
mentioned goodwill impairment charges of $53.3 million and $48.8 million, respectively.

Interest expense decreased $1.5 million, or 7%, from $20.6 million in fiscal 2006 1o $19.1 million in
fiscal 2007, due Lo a decrease in outstanding debt.

Interest income and other increased $6.9 miliion from $1.9 million in fiscal 2006 to $8.8 million in
fiscal 2007. This increase was primarily due to increased interest income earned on higher amounts of

cash and short-term investments,
l

Income tax expense decreased $3.7 million, or 58%, from $6.4 million in fiscal 2006 to $2.7 million
in fiscal 2007. This decrease in income tax expense was primarily due to the decreasc in U.S. earnings
versus higher foreign sourced earnings, which are taxed at a lower rate than U.S earnings and the
income tax expense of $9.1 million recorded in fiscal 2006 related to the American Jobs Creations Act
of 2004 (“AJCA”) dividend which did not recur in fiscal 2007. This decrease was offsel by the recording
of income taxes on unremitied foreign earnings, the tax impact of non-deductible goodwill impairments,
and an increase in our contingent tax reserve. These offsets led to an increase in the effective tax rate
from 24.1% in fiscal 2006 to 49.6% in fiscal 2007.

As a result of the foregoing, earnings from continuing operations decreased $17.9 million, or 87%,
from $20.5 million in fiscal 2006 to $2.6 million in fiscal 2007. Basic earnings per share from continuing
operations were $0.06 for fiscal 2007 compared to $0.50 for fiscal 2006. Diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations were $0.06 for fiscal 2007 compared to $0.50 for fiscal 2006.

The loss from discontinued opérations, net of tax, for fiscal 2007 was $105.7 million, or $2.64 per
dituted share. The loss includes (a) a non-tax deductible loss of $18.4 million on the sale of the

Kaemingk business, (b) a non-tax deductible loss on the sale of the Edelman and Euro-Decor
I
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businesses of $14.5 million, which includes a goodwill impairment charge of $16.7 million recorded in
the first quarter of fiscal 2007, (c) a net of tax loss on the sale of the Gies business of $28.0 million,
which includes an impairment charge of $31.1 million recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2007,
and (d) a net of tax loss on sale of the Colony business of $19.9 million, which includes an impairment
charge of $28.6 million recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2007. The loss from discontinued
operations includes operating income, net of tax, for fiscal 2006 of $4.3 million, or $0.11 per diluted
share, compared to an operating loss, net of tax, of $24.9 million, or $0.62 per diluted share, for fiscal
2007.

Seasonality

Approximately 56% and 57% of our net sales occurred in the third and fourth fiscal quarters of
2007 and 2008, respectively. Our net sales are higher in the third and fourth fiscal quarters due to
increased shipments to meet year-end holiday season demand for our preducts.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents increased $59.2 million from $103.8 million af January 31, 2007 to
$163.0 million at January 31, 2008.

We typically generate positive cash flow from operations due to favorable gross margins and the
variable nature of selling expenses, which constitute a significant percentage of operating expenses. We
generated $94.3 million in cash from operations in fiscal 2007 compared to $91.8 million in fiscal 2008.
Earnings from continuing operations increased $8.5 million to $11.1 million primarily due to improved
profit margins within the Direct Selling and Wholesale segments. Included in earnings from continuing
operations were non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization, goodwill and other intangible
impairments, and amortization of unearned compensation of $32.0 million, $49.2 million and
$2.2 million, respectively. Net changes in operating assets and liabilities increased cash by $1.4 million.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $94.9 million. We decreased our short-term
investments o $30.4 million at January 31, 2008. Net capital expenditures for property, plant and
equipment were $9.4 million in fiscal 2008, down from $17.7 million in fiscal 2007. The decrease from
the prior year is due to the fiscal 2007 capital expendilures for the expansion of our European
distribution center in support of ongoing growth of our direct selling business in Europe. During fiscal
2008 we received proceeds from the sale of certain assets and liabilities of the BHI NA business of
$25.3 million and proceeds from the sale of one of our European Wholesale discontinued operations of
$0.5 million.

Net cash used in financing aclivilies in fiscal 2008 was $134.8 million and included the reduction of
our long-term debt by $56.7 million. We also used cash to purchase treasury stock of $64.2 million and
pay dividends of $20.9 million. Proceeds from the issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options were $7.1 million.

We anticipate total capitat spending of approximately $12.0 million for fiscal 2009, or $3.0 million
more than fiscal year 2008, due to the ongoing effort to improve our information technology systems
and our production infrastructure. We have grown in part through acquisitions and, as part of our
growth strategy, we expect to continue from time to time in the ordinary course of business to evaluate
and pursue acquisition opportunities as appropriate. We believe our financing needs in the short and
long term can be met from cash generated internally and through our borrowing tapacity from our
existing credit agreements. Information on debt maturities is presented in Note 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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In October 2006. we executed Amendment No. 1 (the “Amendment’) to our unsecured revolving
credit facility (“Credit Facility”) dated as of June 2, 2005. The Amendment (i) reduced the amount
available for borrowing under the Credit Agreement from $150.0 million to $75.0 million, (ii) changed
the initial termination date from June 2, 2010 to June 1, 2009, (iii) increased the rate of interest
applicable to loans under the Credit Agreement and (iv) modified some of the covenants. We have the
ability to increase the amount available for borrowing, under certain circumstances, by an additional
$50.0 million. The Credit Facility may be used for seasonal working capital needs and general corporate
purposes, including strategic acquisitions. The Credit Facility contains, among other provisions,
requirements for maintaining certain financial ratios and limitations on certain payments. As of January
31, 2008, we were in compliance with such provisions. Amounts cutstanding under the amended Credit
Facility bear interest, at our option, at JPMorgan Chase Bank’s prime rate or Eurocurrency rate plus a
spread ranging from 0.80% to 1.70% calculated on the basis of our senior unsecured long-term debt
rating. Amounts available for borrowing under this facility were approximately $68.7 million as of
January 31, 2008, reflecting $6.3 million in outstanding letters of credit.

In May 1999, we filed a shelf Jregistration statement for the issuance of up to $250.0 million in debt
securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission, On September 24, 1999, we issued
$150.0 million of 7.90% Senior Notes due October 1, 2009 at a discount of approximately $1.4 million,
which is being amortized over the life of the notes. In fiscal 2007 and 2008, we repurchased
$52.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, of these notes. Such notes contain, among other
provisions, restrictions on liens on principal property or stock issued to collateralize debt. At Januoary
31, 2008, we were in compliance with such provisions. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on
April 1 and October 1. On October 20, 2003, we issued $100.0 million 5.50% Senior Notes due on
November 1, 2013 at a discount of approximately $0.2 million, which is being amortized over the life of
the notes. Such notes contain provisions and restrictions similar to those in the 7.90% Senior Notes. At
January 31, 2008, we were in compliance with such provisions. Interest is payable semi-annually in
arrears on May 1 and November 1. The notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at a
specified redemption price. The proceeds of the debt issuances were used for general corporate
purposes.

As of January 31, 2007 and 2(|)08, Miles Kimball had approximately $9.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively, of long-term debt (including current portion) outstanding under a real estate mortgage
note payable to John Hancock Life Insurance Company. which matures on June 1, 2020. Under the
terms of the note, payments of principal and interest are required monthiy at a fixed interest rate of

7.89%. ‘

As of January 31, 2007 and 2008, CBK had $4.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively, of long-term
debt outstanding under an Industrial Revenue Bond (“IRB”), which matures on January 1, 2025. The
change is due to the pay down of the principal by $4.1 million in November 2007. The bond is backed
by an trrevocable letter of credit issued by Bank of America. The loan is coilateralized by certain of
CBK’s assets. The amount outstanlding under the IRB bears interest at shori-term floating rates, which
equaled a weighted average interest rate of 4.4% at January 31, 2008. Interest payments are required
monthly and the principal is due upon maturity.

The estimated fair value of our $215.8 million and $158.8 million total long-term debt (including
current portion) at January 31, 2007 and 2008 was approximately $205.7 million and $141.9 million,
respectively. The fair value is determined by quoted market prices, where available, and from analyses
performed by investment bankers using current interest rates considering our credit rating and the
remaining terms to maturity.
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The following table summarizes the maturity dates of our contractual obligations as of January 31,
2008:

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations (In thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 Years  3-5 Years 5 Years
LongTerm Debt(1) ...................... $158,089 $§ 426 S50460 § 1,122 $106,081
Capital Leases(2) .. ....... .. ... .. ... ... 726 502 216 5 —
Interest(3) . ... .. ... 43,168 10,130 14,833 12,067 0,138
Purchase QObligations(4) .. ................. 28,439 251173 1,606 1,107 553
Operating Leases .. ........... ... .. ....... 78,827 16,405 26,312 18,253 17,857
Unrecognized Tax Benefits(5) .. ............. 30,991 6,523 — — —
Total Contractual Obligations .. ........... $340,240 §59,159 393427 $32557 §130,629

(1) Long-term debt includes 7.90% Senior Notes due October 1, 2009, 5.5% Senior Notes due November 1, 2013,
a mortgage note payable with a maturity date of Junc 1, 2020, and an Industrial Revenue Bond (“TRB”) with
a maturity datc of Januvary 1, 2025. (See Note 11 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(2} Amounts represent future lease payments, excluding intcrest, due on four capital leases, which end between
fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2012 (See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(3) Interest expense on long-term debt is comprised of $38.1 million relating to Senior Notes, $4.9 million in
mortgage interest, $71 thousand of interest due on the CBK IRB an¢ approximately $58 thousand of interest
relating to future capital lease obligations.

{(4) Purchase obligations consist primarily of open purchase orders for inventory,

(5) Unrecognized tux benefits consist of $6.5 million which is expected to be realized within the next 12 months
and $24.4 million for which we arc not able to reasonably estimate the timing of the potential future
payments (See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

On December 13, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized a new stock repurchase program for
6,000,000 shares thal will become effective after we exhaust the 12,000,000 shares authorized for
repurchase under the old repurchase program. Since January 31, 2007, we have purchased
3,221,553 shares on the open market, for a cost of $64.2 million, bringing the cumulative total
purchased shares to $,650,735 as of January 31, 2008, for a total cost of approximalely $213.7 million,
Additionally in fiscal 2005, 4,906,616 shares were repurchased through a Dutch auction cash tender
offer for an aggregate purchase price of $172.6 million, including fees and expenses. The acquired
shares are held as common stock in treasury at cost.

On April 8, 2008, we declared a cash dividend of $0.27 per share of common stock. The dividend
will be payable to sharcholders of record as of May 1, 2008 and will be paid on May 15, 2008.

Our ability to pay cash dividends in the future is dependent upon, among other things, our ability
to operate profitably and to generate significant cash flows from operations in excess of investment and
financing requirements that may increase in the future to, for example, fund new acquisitions or retire
debt.

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligations or other
relationships with unconsolidated entities that would be expected to a have a material current or future
effect upon our financial statements.

We do not utilize derivatives for trading purposes.

On January 24, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a domestic reinvestment plan for
approximately $130.0 million in foreign earnings that were previously considered permanently
reinvested in non-U.S. legal entities, which we repatriated under the AJCA. Of this amount,
$91.0 million qualified for the favorable treatment under the AJCA. The funds were brought back to
the U.S. late in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The tax cost of this distribution was $7.6 million. As
part of our repatriation plan, we reinvested the repatriated amount domestically in a wide range of
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initiatives, including the hiring and training of U.S. workers, research and development efforts, qualified
retirement plan funding, capital expenditures to support the U.S. businesses, advertising and marketing
with respect to various trademarks, brand names and rights to intangible property, and acquisitions of
U.S.-based businesses, all consistent with the requirements of the legislation.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate
our estimates, including those related to bad debts, inventories, income taxes, restructuring and
impairments, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. |

Note 1 1o the consolidated financial statements, included in this report, includes a summary of the
significant accounting policies and'methods used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements. The following are our critical accounting policies and methods.

Revenue Recognition [

Revenues consist of sales to customers, net of returns and allowances. We recognize revenue upon
delivery, when both title and risk of loss are transferred to the customer. We present revenues net of
any taxes collected from customers and remitted lo government authorities.

Generally, sales orders are received via signed customer purchase orders with stated fixed prices
based on published price lists. We'record estimated reductions to revenue for customer programs,
which may include special pricing agreements for specific customers, volume incentives and other
promotions. Should markel conditions decline, we may increase customer incentives with respect (o
future sales. We also record reductions to revenue, based primarily on hislorical experience, for
estimated customer relurns and chargebacks thal may arise as a result of shipping errors, product
damage in transit or for other reasons that can only become known subsequent to recognizing the
revenue. If the amount of actual customer returns and chargebacks were 1o increase significantly from
the estimated amount, revisions to the estimaled allowance would be required. In some inslances, we
receive payment in advance of product delivery. Such advance payments occur primarily in our direct
selling and direct marketing channels and are recorded as deferred revenue. Upon delivery of product
for which advance payment has been made, the related deferred revenue is reclassified to revenue,

Maost of our sales made on credit are made 1o an established list of customers. Although the
collectability of sales made on credit is reasonably assured, we have established an allowance for
doubtful accounts for trade and noéte receivables. The allowance is determined based on our evaluation
of specific customers’ ability to pay, aging of receivables, historical experience and the current economic
environment. While we believe we have appropriately considered known or expecled outcomes, our
customers’ ability 10 pay their obligations, including those 1o us, could be adversely affecled by
declining sales at retail resulting from such factors as contraction in the economy or a general decline
in consumer spending. .

Some of our business units offer seasonal dating programs pursuant to which customers that
qualify for such programs are offered extended payment terms for seasonal product shipments. As with
other customers, customer orders pursuant to such seasonal dating programs are generally received in
the form of a written purchase corder signed by an authorized representative of the customer. Sales
made pursuant to seasonal dating programs are recorded as revenue only upon delivery either to the
customer or to an agent of the culslomer depending on the freight terms for the particular shipment
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and consistent with the concept of “risk of loss.” The sales price for our products sold pursuant to such
seasonal dating programs is fixed prior to the time of shipment to the customer. Customers do not
have the right to return product, except for rights to return that we believe are typical of our industry
for such reasons as damaged goods, shipping errors or similar occurrences. We are not required to
repurchase products from our customers, nor do we have any regular practice of doing so. We believe
that we are reasonably assured of payment for products sold pursuant to such seasonal dating programs
based on our historical experience with the established list of customers eligible for such programs. In
addition, we minimize our exposure to bad debis by utilizing established credit limits Tor cach customer.
If, however, product sales by our customers during the seasonal selling period should fall significantly
below expectations, such customers’ financial condition could be adversely affected, increasing the risk
of not collecting these seasonal dating receivables and, possibly, resulting in additional bad debt
charges. We do not make any sales under consignment or similar arrangements.

Inventory valuation

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out
method. We write down our inventory for estimated obsolete, excess and unmarketable inventory by an
amount equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based
upon assumptions about futlure demand, market conditions, customer planograms and sales forecasts, If
market acceptance of our existing products or the successful introduction of new products should
significantly decrease, additional inventory write-downs could be required. Potential additional inventory
write-downs could result from unanticipated additional quantities of obsolete finished goods and raw
materials, and/or from lower disposition values offered by the parties who normally purchase surplus
inventories. As of Januvary 31, 2007 and 2008, we had inventory valuation reserves totaling $24.3 million
and $12.4 million, respectively.

Restructuring and impairment charges on long-lived assets

In response to changing market conditions and competition, our management regularly updates
our business model and market strategies, including the evaluation of facilities, personnel and products.
Future adverse changes in economic and market conditions could result in additional organizational
changes and possibly additional restructuring and impairment charges. We recorded $4.1 million and
$0.7 million of charges related to the restructuring of our North American mass channel home
fragrance business during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008, respectively (See Note 5 to the Consoclidated
Financial Statements). Also, during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008, we recorded $3.9 million and
$1.6 million, respectively, of charges related to the restructuring of the North American operations of
our Direct Selling segment in recognition of the recent decline in sales in this channel. The fiscal 2008
costs were comprised of a $1.5 million charge to cost of goods sold for lease abligations and
$0.1 million of severance costs recorded in selling and administrative expense, Histortcally, we have
reviewed long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and other intangibles with definite
lives for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that the
carrying amount of such an asset might not be recoverable. Management determines whether there has
been a permanent impairment on long-lived assets held for use in the business by comparing
anticipated undiscounted future cash flow from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset
group to the carrying value of the asset. The amount of any resulting impairment is calculated by
comparing the carrying value to the fair value, which may be estimated using the present value of the
same cash flows. Long-lived assets that meet the definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of
carrying amount or net realizable value.

Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangibles

Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangibles are subject to an assessment for impairment using a
two-step fair value-based test and such other intangibles are also subject to impairment reviews, which
must be performed at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that
goodwill or other indefinite lived intangibles might be impaired.
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We perform our annual assessment of impairment as of January 31, which is our fiscal year-end
date. For goodwill, the first step is;to identify whether a potential impairment exists. This first step
compares the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. Fair value for
each of our reporting units is estimated utilizing a combination of valuation techniques, namely the
discounted cash flow methodology and the market mulliple methodology. The fair value of the
reporting units is derived by calculating the average of the outcome of the two valuation techniques.
The discounted cash flow methodology assumes the fair value of an asset can be estimated by the
economic benefit or net cash flows the asset will generate over the life of the asset, discounted fo its
present value. The discounting process uses a rate of return that accounts for both the time value of
money and the investment risk factors. The market multiple methodology estimates fair value based on
what other participants in the market have recently paid for reasonably similar assets. Adjustments are
made to compensate for differences between the reasonabiy similar assets and the assets being valued.
If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value, no further analysis is necessary. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step is performed, The second
step compares the carrying amount of the goodwill to the estimated fair value of the goodwill. If fair
value is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is reported as a reduction to goodwill and a
charge to operating expense.

Our assumplions in the discoqmcd cash flow methodology used to support recoverability include
the reporting unit’s five year business outlock. The business ocutlook is a five year projection of the
business unit’s financial performance. The business cutlook includes the cash expected to be generated
from the reporting unit based on certain assumptions for revenue growth, capital spending and profit
margins. This serves as the basis for the discounted cash flow model in determining fair value.
Additionalty, the discount rate utilized in the cash flow model values the reporting unit to its net
present value taking into consideration the time value of money, other investment risk factors and the
terminal value of the business. For the terminal value, we used a multiple of earnings before income
taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) multiplied by a certain factor for which an
independent third party would pay for a similar business in an arms length transaction. In determining
this factor we used information that was available for similar {ransactions executed in the marketplace.
The multiple of EBITDA used contemplates, among other things, the expected revenue growth of the
business, which in turn would require the use of a higher EBITDA multiple if revenue were expected
o grow at a higher rate than normal. The following circumstances could impact our cash flow and
cause further impairments to reported goodwill:

+ unexpected increase in combpetition resulting in lower prices or lower volumes,
* entry of new products into the marketplace from competitors,

* lack of acceptance of our new products into the marketplace,

* loss of a key employee or customer,

* significantly higher raw material costs, and

* macro economic factors.
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Wholesale Premium

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we identified a triggering event that caused us to reassess
goodwill impairment for our Wholesale premium reporting unit within the Wholesale segment. In the
Wholesale premium reporting unit, a business restructuring resulted in a significantly reduced near-
lerm outlook for the businesses that gives effect to the changing business environment which led us to
perform an impairment analysis of the goodwill in this reporting unit. As a result of this analysis, the
goodwill in this reporting unit was determined to be impaired, as the fair value of the reporting unit
was less than the carrying value of (he reporting unit including goodwill. The decrease in the fair value
of this reporting unit was due to a significant decrease in the projected results for the full fiscal year
and future years as a result of the factors previously discussed.

The estimated fair value of the reporting unit was determined ulilizing a combination of valuation
techniques, namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the market multiple methodology. As a
result, we recorded a non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $25.1 million in the second
quarter of fiscal 2007, in addition Lo a charge of $42.2 million in fiscal 2006, writing off the remaining
goodwill balance of the Wholesale premium reporting unit in the Wholesale segment.

Sterno

As a result of the our annual impairment analyses in fiscal 2006, we determined that the goodwill
balance existing at the Sterno reporting unit in the Wholesale segment was impaired. In fiscal 2006, the
Sterno reporting unit experienced a substantial decline in operating performance when compared to
prior years® results and budgeted fiscal 2006 expectations. Therefore, we recorded a non-cash pre-tax
goodwill impairment charge of $11.1 million in the Sterno reporting unit of the Wholesale segment.

During fiscal 2007, we reassessed the goodwill of the Sterno reporting unit for impairment. In the
Sterno reporting unit, our decision 10 discontinue sales of a new product line coupled with sharply
rising commodity costs, along with a decline in operating performance when compared to prior years’
results and budgeted fiscal 2007 expectations led us to perform analyses of goodwill within the
reporting unit. As a result of these reviews, the goodwill in this reporting unit was determined to be
impaired, as the fair value of the reporting unit was less than the carrying value of the reporting unit
including goodwill. The decrease in the fair value of the reporting unit was due (o a significant
decrease in the projecied results for the full fiscal year and future years as a resull of the factors
previously discussed. The estimated fair value of the reporting unit was delermined utilizing a
combination of valuation techniques, namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the market
muitiple methodology. As a result, we recorded non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charges totaling
$23.7 million in the Wholesale segment, in addition to the $11.1 million charge taken in fiscal 2006.
These adjusiments completely eliminated the remaining goodwill balance of the Sterno reporting unit
within the Wholesale segment.

Miles Kinball

As a result of our January 31, 2008 annual impairment assessment, we determined that the
goodwill related to the Miles Kimball reporting unit, in the Catalog & Internet segment, was impaired.
In fiscal 2008, the Miles Kimbail business experienced lower revenue growth than anticipated when
compared 1o the fiscal 2008 budget and beyond. We believe this shortfall in performance was primarily
attributable Lo decreased consumer spending due to changes in the business environment and adverse
economic conditions that were prevailing during the later part of fiscal 2008. As a resull of the analysis,
the goodwill in this reporting unit was determined to be impaired, as the fair value of the reporting
unit was less than the carrying value of the reporting unit including goodwill. Accordingly, we recorded
a non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $46.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008,
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The table below is a summary of estimated fair values as of January 31, 2007 and 2008 and the
assumptions used in comparison 10 the carrying values in assessing recoverability for lhe Miles Kimball
reporting unit of the Caialog & Internet segment.

2007 2008

| (&s in millions)
Estimated fair value . .. .. ... 0. e $1525 $1084
Recorded carrying value of 4SS€ls . . . . . .o e e 1334  146.6
Excess (impaired) value to recorded value . . .. .. ... ... L L e $19.1 $(38.2)
Assumptions and other information:
Discount rate . . . .. .o e e e e e 13.0% 13.0%
Average revenue growlh Tale .. ... . . L e e 44% 41%
Taxrate .. ..o oeiii e 390% 39.8%
Terminal multiple of EBITDA . . .. .. ... . i i 8.5 6.0
Capital expenditures . . . . ... . e 95 % 76
Goodwill at TISK . . . . ot $ 745 § 277
Other long lived assets at risk . ... .. .. ... ... L o L $ 194 § 203

As a resuit of the reduced near term outlook and the changing business environment, the terminal
multiple of EBITDA was reduced from 8.5 to 6.0. The change in this assumption reflects the continued
changes in the business environment and adverse business conditions we are currently experiencing due
1o decreased consumer spending, Managcmenl believes the adverse conditions currently being
experienced are not temporary, but rather reflect the additional risk in the marketplace as a result of
additional economic and pricing pressures.

Other

!

In August 2005, we acquired a 100% interest in Boca Java, a small gourmet coffee and tea
company. Boca Java sells its products primarily through the internet and is included in the Catalog &
Internet segment. In accordance with SEAS No. 142, we have determined that Boca Java represents a
separate reporting unit and thus must be reviewed for impairment on a stand alone basis. We have
completed the January 31, 2008 impairment assessment which indicated that the goodwill of
$1.9 million is fuily recoverable. Boca Java is a relatively new operation and the recoverability of ils
goodwill is dependent upon achieving high revenue growth and other operating objectives as well as the
continued support and funding fram its parent. Should Boca Java fail to meet its revenue and
operating objectives or fail to receive the continued support of its parent, its goodwill could be subject
10 a partial or full impairment.

Our Direct Selling segment has approximately $2.3 million of goodwiil. The January 31, 2008
impairment assessment of this segment indicates that the goodwill is fully recoverable. The Direct
Seiling segment currently generates a significant amount of cash flows, and therefore the estimated fair
value exceeds its carrying value by a wide margin.

Significant assumptions

If actual revenue growth, profit margins, costs and capital spending should differ significantly from
the assumptions included in our business outlook used in the cash flow models, the reporting unit’s fair
value could fall significantly below expectations and additional impairment charges could be required to
write down goodwill to its fair value and, if necessary, other long lived assets could be subject to a
similar fair value test and possible impairment. Long lived assels represent primarily fixed assets and
other long term assets excluding gPodwill and other intangibles,

There are two main assumptions that are used for the discounted cash flow analysis; first, the
discount rate and second the terminal multiple. This discount rate is used to value the gross cash flows
expected to be derived from the business to its net present value. The discount rate uses a rate of
return 10 account for the time valee of money and an investment risk factor. For the terminal multiple,
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we used earnings betore interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) multiplied by a
factor for which an independent third party would pay for a similar business in an arms length
transaction. In determining this factor we used information that was available for similar transactions
executed in the marketplace. The multiple of EBITDA used contemplates, among other things, the
expected revenue growth of the business which in turn would require the use of a higher EBITDA
muitiple if revenue were expected to grow at a higher rate than normal. A change in the discount rate
is often used by management to alter or temper the discounted cash flow model if there is a higher
degree of risk that the business outlook objectives might not be achieved. These risks are often based
upon the business units past performance, competition, confidence in the business unit management,
position in the marketplace, acceptance of new products in the marketplace and other macro and
microeconomic factors surrounding the business.

If management believes there is additional risk associated with the business outlook it will adjust
the discount rate and terminal value accordingly. The terminal value is generally a multiple of EBITDA
and i3 discounted to ils nel present value using the discount rate, Capital expenditures are included and
are consistent with the historical business trend plus any known significant expenditures. Il the outlook
for the Miles Kimball reporting unit as of January 31, 2008 was 1o be less optimistic than we had
assumed in our valuaiion model, whereby we increased the discount rate by 19% and decreased the
terminal multiple by one, the [air value of the Miles Kimball reporting unit would have decreased by
an additional $12.7 million, resulting in an additional $12.7 million goodwill impairment charge. If the
outlook for the Miles Kimball reporting unit as of January 31, 2008 was more optimistic than we had
assumed in our valuation model, whereby we decreased the discount rate by 1% and increased the
terminal multiple by one, the fair value of the Miles Kimball reporting unit would have increased by
$13.8 million, reducing the impairment charge 1o $33.0 million.

Trade Names and Trademarks

Our trade name and (rademark intangible assets relate to our acquisitions of Miles Kimball and
Walter Dirake in fiscal 2004 and are reported in the Catalog & Internet segment. We had approximately
$25.8 million in trade names and trademarks as of January 31, 2008.

We perform our annual assessment of impairment for indefinite-lived intangible assets as of
January 31, which is our fiscal year-end. We use the relicf from royalty method to estimate the fair
value for indefinite-lived intangible assets. The underlying concepl of the relief from royalty method is
that the inherent economic value of intangibles is directly related 1o the timing of future cash flows
associaled with the intangible asset. Similar to the income approach or discounted cash flow
methodology used to determine the fair value of goodwill, the fair value of indefinite-lived intangible
assets is equal 1o the present value of after-tax cash flows associated with the intangible asset based on
an applicable royalty rate. The royalty rate is delermined by using existing market comparables for
royally agreements using an intellectual properly data base. The arms-length agreements generally
support a rate that is a percentage of direct sales. This approach is based on the premise that the free
cash flow is a more valid criterion for measuring value than “book™ or accounting profits.

As a result of our January 31, 2008 impairment assessment, we determined that the recorded
values of trade names and trademarks at Miles Kimball reporting uniy, in the Catalog & Internet
segment, were impaired. In fiscal 2008, the Miles Kimball business experienced lower revenue growth
than anticipated when compared to the fiscal 2008 budget and beyond. We believe this shortfall in
performance was primarily attributable to decreased consumer spending due to changes in the business
environment and adverse economic conditions. As a result of the impairment analysis performed, the
trade names and trademarks in this reporting unit were determined to be impaired, as their fair value
was less than their carrying value. Accordingly, we recorded a non-cash pre-tax impairment charge of
$2.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

The two primary assumptions used in the relief from royalty method are the discount rate and the
royalty rate. This discount rate is used to value the expected net cash flows to be derived from the
royalty to its net present value, The discount rate uses a rate of return to account for the time value of
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money and an investment risk factor. The royalty rate is based upon past royalty performance as well
as the expected royalty growth rate using both macro and microeconomic factors surrounding the
business. A change in the discount!rate is often used by management to alter or temper the discounted
cash flow analysis if there is a higher degree of risk that the estimated cash flows from the indefinite-
lived intangible asset may not be fully achieved. These risks are often based upon the business units’
past performance, competition, position in the marketplace, acceptance of new products in the
marketplace and other macro and microeconomic factors surrounding the business. If, however, actual
cash flows should fall significantly below expectations, this could result in an impairment of our
indefinite-lived intangible assets. If, as of January 31, 2008, the discount rate would have increased and
the royalty rate would have decreased by 1%, respectively, the fair value of the Catalog & Internet
trade names and trademarks would have decreased by $12.7 million to $13.9 million. This decrease
would have required us to take an additional impairment charge of $11.9 million to write-down our
indefinite lived intangibles to its egtimated fair value. Conversely, if the discount rate would have
decreased and the royalty rate would have increased by 1%, respectively, the fair value of the

Catalog & Internet trade names and trademarks would have increased by $14.9 million, resulting in no

impairment charge.
|

Accounting for income taves

As part of the process of preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, we are required to
estimate our actual current tax exposure (state, federal and foreign), together with assessing permanent
and temporary differences resulting from differing bases and treatment of items for tax and accounting
purposes, such as the carrying value of intangibles, deductibility of expenses, depreciation of property
and equipment, and valuation of inventories. Temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which are included within our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We must then assess the
likelthood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from Future taxable income. Actual results
could differ from this assessment if sufficient taxable income is not generated in future periods. To the
extent we determine the need to establish a valuation allowance or increase such allowance in a period,
we must include an expense within the tax provision in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Earnings. Management periodically estimates our probable tax obligations using historical experience in
tax jurisdictions and informed judgments. There are inherent uncertainties related to the interpretation
of tax regulations in the jurisdictions in which we transact business. The judgments and estimates made
at a point in time may change based on the outcome of tax audits, as well as changes to or further
interpretations of regulations. If such changes take place, there is a risk that the tax rate may increase
or decrease in any period. Amounts accrued for the potential tax assessments, primarily recorded in
long-term liabilities, total $9.9 million and $25.1 million at January 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.
Accruals relate to tax issues for U.S. federal, domestic state and taxation of foreign earnings.

We historically have not provided deferred taxes on the undistributed net earnings of foreign
subsidiaries as such earnings were considered to be indefinitely reinvested in operations outside the
United States. As of January 31, 2007 we determined that certain foreign subsidiaries’ undistributed net
earnings were {0 be repatriated to the United States, and accordingly, U.S. income taxes were provided
for the earnings of those foreign subsidiaries. As of January 31, 2008, we determined that $71.8 million
of undistributed foreign earnings were not reinvested indefinitely by our non-U.S. subsidiaries. During
fiscal 2008, deferred income tax of $0.3 million was recorded as a reduction to our net income on these
unremitted earnings. We periodically determine whether the non-U.S. subsidiaries will invest their
undistributed earnings indefinitely and reassess this determination as appropriate.

Impact of Adoption of Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In September 2006, the FASB, issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS
No. 1577). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permil fair value
measurements. Accordingly, SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS
[
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No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not yet adopied this
standard and have not completed the analysis to determine the eifect on our financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB Statements No. 115” (“SFAS No. 159”).
SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose, atl specified election dates, to measure eligible items at fair
value (the “fair value oplion™). A business entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting period. This
accounting standard is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s {irst {iscal ycar that begins after
November 15, 2007. We have elected to adopt FAS 159 effective on February 1, 2008. We did not apply
fair value accounting for any of our existing eligible assets and liabilities as of February 1, 2008 and
therefore this statement will not have a material impact on our financial statements. We may elect o
apply the fair value accounting standards for any new eligible assetls and liabilities acquired after the
adoption date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141{revised 2007), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS No. 14]1R”). SFAS No. 141R will significantly change the accounting for business combinations
in a number of arcas including the treatment of conlingent consideration, contingencies, acquisilion
costs, [IPR&D and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS No. 141R, changes in deferred Lax asset
valuation allowances and acquired income tax unceriainties in a business combination afier the
measurement period will impact inconme tax expense. SFAS No. L41R is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008 and, as such, we will adopt this standard in fiscal 2010, We will be
required to account for any acquisition entered into subsequent to January 31, 2009 in accordance with
the provisions of this statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51”7 (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 160 will change the
accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests
and classified as a component of equity. This new consolidation method will significantly change the
accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years
beginning afler December 15, 2008 and, as such, we will adopt this standard in fiscal 2010, We have not
yel determined the impact, if any, of SFAS No. 160 on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133” (SFAS No. 161”). SFAS No. 161
requires disclosures of how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments
and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and how derivative instruments and
related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS
No. 161 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, with early adoption permitted.
We have not yet determined the impact, if any, of SFAS No. 161 on our consolidated financial
statements.

Forward-looking and Cautionary Statements

Certain statements contained in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements involve a number of
risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results 1o differ materially, as discussed
more fully elsewhere in this report and in our previous filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market Risk

We have operations outside of the United States and sell our products worldwide. Our activities
expose us to a variely of market risks, including the effects of changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and commaodity prices. These financial exposures are actively monitored and, where
considered appropriale, managed by us.
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Interest Rate Risk [

We are subjeci to interest rate risk on both variable rate debt and our invesiments in auction rate
securities. As of January 31, 2008, we are subject to interest rate risk on approximately $0.1 million of
variable rate debt. A 1-percentage point increase in the interest rale would not have a matertal impact
on pre-tax earnings. As of January 31, 2008, we held $25.0 million of auction rate securities and
variable rate demand obligations. A 1-percentage point decrease in the rate of return would impact
pre-tax earnings by approximately $0.3 million if applied to the total.

On July 10, 2003, we lerminaled the interesl rate swap agreement in refation to $50.0 million of
outstanding 7.90% Senior Notes, which mature on October 1, 2009. This termination resuited in a gain
of approximately $5.0 million, which was deferred and is being amortized over the remaining term of
the notes. At January 31, 2007 and; 2008, there was $2.1 million and $1.3 million, respectively,
remaining to be amortized.

Foreign Currency Risk

We use foreign exchange forward and oplions contracts to hedge the impact of foreign currency
fluctuatlions on foreign denominated inventory purchases, inlercompany payables and certain
intercompany loans. We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. We
hedged the net assets of certain of our foreign operations through foreign currency forward contracts
during fiscal 2006. This hedge terminated during fiscal 2006 and the net afler-lax gain related to the
derivative nel investment hedge instrument recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) (“AOCT”) totaled $1.8 million at January 31, 2008.

We have designated our forward exchange and options contracts on forecasted intercompany
purchases and future purchase comimitments as cash flow hedges and, as such, as long as the hedge
remains effective and the underlying transaction remains probable, the effective portion of the changes
in the fair value of these contracts will be recorded in AOCIH until earnings are affected by the
variability of the cash flows being hedged. With regard to commitments for inventory purchases, upon
payment of each commitment, the underlying forward contract is closed and the corresponding gain or
loss is transferred from AOCI and is included in the measurement of the cost of the acquired assct. 1If
a hedging instrument is sold or terminated prior to maturity, gains and losses are deferred in AOCI
unti! the hedged item is settled. However, if the hedged item is no longer likely to occur, the resultant
gain or loss on the terminated hedge is recognized into earnings immediately. Amounts incleded in
AOCI at January 31, 2008 are $0.6 million, net of tax, and are expected to be transferred into earnings
within the next twelve months upon payment of the underlying commitment.

We have designated our foreign currency forward contracts related to certain foreign denominated
loans and intercompany payables as fair value hedges. The gains or losses on the fair value hedges are
recognized into earnings and genefally offset the transaction gains or losses in the foreign denominated
loans that they are intended to hedge.

For consolidated financial statement presentation, net cash flows from such hedges are classified in
the categories of the Consolidated!Statements of Cash Flows with the items being hedged.

The following table provides information about our foreign exchange forward and options contracts
al January 31, 2008:

! US Doltar Average Unrealized
(In thousands, except average contract rate) Notional Amonnt  Contract Rate  Gain (Lass)
Canadian Dollar ... ......... T $ 6,522 0.94 $(336)
Euro ....... ... .. L. e 34,654 1.46 (582)

' $41,176 $(938)

The foreign exchange contracts ouistanding have maturity dates through February 2009.

32



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockhalders of Blyth, Inc.
Greenwich, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Blyth, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company™) as of January 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of earnings
(loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31,
2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Ttem 15. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing Lhe accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evalvating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such conseclidated financial stalements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Blyth, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 3], 2008 and 2007, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2008,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in
our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, on February 1, 2007, the
Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Incone Taves an Interpretation of FASE Statement No. 109.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January
31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 11,
2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, Ulinois
April 11, 2008
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
I Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of Janvary 31, (In thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... .
ShOF-Erm INVESIMENTS . . . . v o it i et e e m e e e e e e e
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubiful receivables $1.533 in 2007 and $2,006 in
2008 ... e B e e e e e
L% s £+ o =
Prepaid and other . ... ... ... ..., L
Deferred iN00Me aKCS . « o . vt it e e et e e e e e e e e e

Total CUTTEnt ASSEIS . . o o .t it e e e e e e
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land and buildings . . ........... L e e e
Leaschold improvements . . . ... ... Lo e e e e e e e e
Machinery and equipment . . .. ... L e
Office furniture, dita processing cqutpmcnt and software . .. ... ... L L L
Construction in PrOZress . .. ... et e e

Less accumulated depreciation ... ... . L. L e e

QOther assets; '

o3 1) U3 o |

Goodwill . ... L

Other intangible asscts, net of accumulated amortization of $7,750 in 2007 and $9,250 in
2008 . e

Deposits and other assets. . .. .. .. . . e e e

B T T

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Bank linesof credit. . . .. ... o o
Current maturities of long-term debt .\, . ... .. . L
Accounts payable . . L. L e e e
Accrued expenses . . ... ... L. S
Income taxes payable ........... e e e e e
Total currcnt liabilities . . .. ... e e e e e e
Deferred income taxes . . .. ... .. .. e
Long-term debt, less current maturities . . . . ... ... .. . .. . L e e
Other liabilities . . . . ... .. e e
Commitments and contingencies . . . . . . . . . . L e e e
Stockholders’ equity: '
Preferred stock—authorized 10,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value; no shares issued . . . . . .
Common stock—authorized 100, 000 000 shares of $0.02 par value issued 50,637,060
shares in 2007 and 50,922,460 shares in 2008 . . ... ..ottt e
Additional contributed capital . . ... ... e
Retained Carmings . . . . .. oo e
Accumulaled other comprehensive INCOMe .. ... .. ... .. e
Treasury stock, at cost, 11,335,798 shares in 2007 and 14,557,351 shares in 2008 . . .. .. ..
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... . ... .. . .. . .. . e
Toual liabilities and stockholders’ equity . .. ... ......... ... ... ... ... .. ...

2007 2008
$ 103,808 $ 163,021
129,725 30,375
35,040 35,054
148321 132,585
33,317 31,968
29,707 36,841
479918 429,844
122,367 126,305
14,303 11,516
156,877 148,430
71,524 63,396
3,573 5,248
368,644 354,895
209,160 214,874
159,484 140,021
3,610 22,315
78,682 31,854
35,350 31,500
17,594 11,888
135,236 97,557
$ 774,638  $ 667,422
$ — % —
987 928
56,450 55,167
77,738 78,045
4,925 10,926
140,100 145,066
35,002 29,563
214792 157,887
21,051 35,838
1,013 1,018
129,367 138,163
534,897 522,328
22,130 25,444
(323,714)  (387,885)
363,693 299,068
$ 774,638 § 667,422

I
The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements,
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss)

For the year ended January 31, (In thousands, except per share data) 2006 2007 2008
Netsales. . . . $1,254,261  $1,220,611  $1,164,950
Costofpgoodssold . ... .. ... . . 618.476 623,942 549,479
Gross profit ... ... 635,783 596,669 615,471
Selling .. ..o e 411,289 409,742 405,316
AdmINISIAtIVE . . ..o e e e 126,068 122,471 130,090
Goodwill and other intangibles impairment .. . ... ... ... o L 53,261 48,812 49,178
Total Operating eXpense . . . ..o vt e 590,618 581,025 584,584
Operating profit . . .. ... .. i e 45,167 15,644 30,887
Other expense (income):
INICIESE BXPENSC . . o v ottt e e e 20,602 19,074 15,540
INLEreSt iNCOME . .« . v o it e e e e e e e (2,235) (7,398) (7,635)
Foreign exchange andother . . .. .. ... .. .. i i 356 (1,401) 1,257
Total other eXpense . . . ... o i e 18,723 10,275 9,162
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and minority
TSt . o L e e e e 26,444 5,369 21,725
INCOmMe 1aX BXPERSE . . . . .. it e e e 6,379 2,664 10,547
Earnings from continuing operations before minority interest . ... .. .. 20,065 2,705 11,178
Minonty inferest . . .. ..o e e {466) 150 106
Earnings from continuing operations . . .. ..................... 20,531 2,555 11,072
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax expense
(benefit) of 31,396 in 2006 and (33.985) in 2007 .. .......... .. ... 4,326 (105,728) —
Netearnings (10SS) . . .. o e e $ 24857 $(103,173) $ 11,072
Basic:
Earnings from continuing operations per common share . . ... .. ... .. $ 050 % 006 % 0.29
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations per common share . ... .. 0.11 (2.66) —
Net earnings (loss) per common share . ... .. ... ... .. ... ... $ 061 $ (2359 % 0.29
Weighted average number of shares outstanding .. ............... 40,956 39,781 38,592
Diluted:
Earnings from continuing operations per common share . . .......... b} 050 % 006 $ 0.28
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations per common share .. .. .. 0.11 (2.64) —_
Net earnings {(loss) per common share . . ...................... $ 060 § (2.58) % 0.28
Weightcd average number of shares outstanding .. ............... 41,176 40,057 38,926

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statcments.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Balunce at Febroary 1,2005 .. ... ... .....
Net earnings for the year . . . ... ... .. ....
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . . . .

Minimum pension liability adjustment
(netoftax$578) . .. .. ..., .. ... ...
Unrealized gain on certain investments
(netoftaxof S167) .. ..............
Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments

(netoftaxof 8842y . . .. .. ...........

Net gain on net investiment hedging instruments

(netof e 1,090y . .. .. ... ... ...,

Comprehensive income (loss) .. ... ... ...

Commeon stock issued in connection with

long-term incentive plan . . . .. ... . ... ..

Tax henefit from stock options . . . ... .. .. ..
fssvance of restricted stock, net of cancellations | .
Amortization of uncarned compensation . . .. . .
Dividends puid ($0.44 pershare} . . . ... ... ..

Treasury stock purchases . . . ... ..., . ...

Balance at January 31,2006 .. . ... ... ... 2

Net (loss) forthe year . . ., .. ., .. ... ...

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . . . .

Unrealized gain on cerain investments
(netoftax of $195) . . . .. .. ... ... ..
Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments

(nesoftaxof 836} . . . .. ... ... ..., .. "

Reversal of minimunt pension liability
{net of tax of $578) due 1o sale of

Edelman and Euro-Decor . ... ... ... ...
Reclassification of unearoed compensation . . . . .

Comprebensive income (loss) ... ... ... ..

Common stock issued in connection
with long-term incentive plan . . . . ... ...

Tax benefit Irom stock options . . ... .. ... ..
Restricled stock net of cancellations . . .. . . . ..

SFAS 138 adoption adjustment {net of taxes of

S563) ... .

Amortization of uncarned compensation . . . . . .

Dividends paid (3.50 per share) .. ... ... .. i,

Treasury stock purchases .. .. ... ... ...

Balance at January 31,2007 .. ...... ... ..

FIN 48 adoption adjustment . . . ... .. ... ..

Net earnings forthe year . . ... ... .. ...,

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . ., .

SFAS 158 adjustment (net of taxes of $167)
Unrealized gain on certain investments

(netofraxof $10) . . . .. ... .., ... ...

Nei loss oo cash flow hedging instruments

(nerof atax benefitof $392) .. ... ... .. n

Comprehensive income (loss) .. . ... ... ..

Common stock issued in connection with

long-term incentive plan . . .. ... ... ...
Tax benefit from stock optians . . ... ...
Amortization of unearncd compensation . . . . . .
Dividends paid ($.54 pershare} .. ... ... ...

‘Treasury stock purchases . . ... Lo

Balance at January 31,2008 . . ... ... . ..."

Accumnuiated
other
Additional comprchensive
Commen  contributed  Retained  Treasory Unearned income
stock eapitul carnings stock compensation {loss) Total
{Iln thousands)
1,007 118,148 651,156 (285,004) —_ 36,102 521,349
24,857 24837
(40.946) (40,946)
{1,347) {5,347
048 948
1,530 1,530
1,778 1,778
(13,180)
3 3,570 3,573
ns 315
5.547 (609 (4,938) —
1,868 1,868
(18,030} (18,030}
(2070 (2,071)
$1.010 $127,580 $ 657,983 $(287,744) 5(3,000) § (1.935) § 403,824
(103,173) (103,173}
21,413 21.413
319 319
67 67
1,347 1,347
(3.070) 1070 -
(80,027)
3 2,472 2,475
118 118
982 (982) —
919 919
1,285 1,285
(19,913} (19913)
{34,988) (34,988)
$1,013 $129,367 $ 534,897  $(323,714) 5 - $22,130 $ 363.693
§$ (2.769) $ {2.769)
1013 $129,367 $ 532,128 $(313.714) 5} - ¥ 22,130 $ 360,924
11,072 11,072
3,693 3,693
253 253
16 14
(648) (648)
14,386
5 1073 7,078
303 303
1.420 1,420
(20,872) (20,872)
(6:4,171) {64,171)
$1,018 $138,163 § 522328 $(387.885) 5 — $ 25,444 § 299,068

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SURBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended January 31, (In thousands) 2006 2007 2008
Cash flows {rom vperating activities:
Netearnings (10s5) . - . . . .0 i e e e $§ 24857 % (103,173) $ 11072
Adjustments 1o reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, nel of (ax . . ..« oot v h i e — 80,865 —
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . .. .. L e i 35,875 34,630 31,974
Loss on disposition of fixed assets . . .. ... . . o o o oL 3212 1,304 112
Loss on impairment of @ssets . . . .. L e e — 2,736 1,224
Lossonsale of business . . .. . ... .. . .. L 1,620 - 611
Tax benefit from S10CK OPLONS . . . . . .. . . i e 315 — —
Unrealized gain on trading investments . . ... .. ... ... ... . ... ..., ... — — (29)
Stock-based compensation exXpense . . ... .. L. Lo e e 1,868 1,285 2,184
Deferred InCOME LAXES . . . . v ittt e e e e e e e e (12,923) (9,200} (7,192)
Equity in (earnings) losses of investee . . ... ..., . ... ... ... .., 50 (214) £295
Minority inteTest . . . .. L e e e (767) (513) 27
Goodwill and other intangibles impairment charges .. .. .. .. .. .......... 53,261 48,812 49,178
Lossonsale of assets held forsale .. ..o 0o oo o oL 1,159 7Y —
Changes in operating assets and habilities, net of effect of business acquisitions and
divestitures:
Accounts receivable L L L L e e e 2,490 43,966 (6,877)
INVENLOTIES . . . . . e e e e (13,84]) 29,837 173
Prepaid and other. . . .. .. . L e e 0,676 (12,905} 1,772
Other lonp-term assets . . . . . o .. 00 it e e (248) 1,280 4,917
Accounts payable . . .. e (1,406) (8,739) (2,452)
ACCTUCH CXPEASES « + o v v it i e e e e e e 3,042 (6,284) (891)
Other liabilities . . . .. . . e e e {4,029) (2.809) (763)
INCOME LAXES . . . o o o i e e e e e e e e 5,612 (6,640) 5,506
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .. ... .. . i 106,823 94,316 91,841
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, net of disposal proceeds . . ... ... .. (17,272) (17,714) (9,421)
Purchases of short-1Brm INVeSIMENIS . . . . . . . 0t e e e e e e e e s —_ {1,463,335)  (1,787,248)
Procecds from sales of shorl-term investments .., ., .. ... .. ..., — 1,333,611 1,865,403
Proceeds from sales o0 assets . . ... o it e e — 5,550 25,646
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash disposed ... ................ 7,643 87,822 514
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired . . .. .. ... ... ... . ....... ... (7.121) (6,654) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . ... ............... (16,748) (60,720) 94,894
Cash flows from financing activitics:
Proceeds from issuance of commonstack .. ... .. ... . o o e 3,706 2,475 7,079
Tax benefit from stock options . ... .. ... ... L L e — 118 303
Purchases of treasury Stock . . .. . L L e e (2,071) {34,988) (64,171)
Borrowings from bank line of credit. . . . ... ... . L oo o oL 140,794 34,172 —_
Repayments on bank line of credit .. . ... ... ... .. o oL {117,950) (41,188) —
Borrowings on long-term debt .. . .. L L L 69,406 - —
Repayments on Jong-termdebt . . . .. ... . L e (4,944) (120,338) (56,676)
Payments on capital lease obligations . . . .. .. ... .. .. . L oL oL, — (309) (445)
Dividends paid . . . .. .. e e (18,030) (19,913} {20,872)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . .. ... ... .......... 70,911 (179,971} (134,782)
Effect of exchange rale changesoncash ... ... ... .. ... . ... . ..., .... (10.613) 8,115 7,260
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ... .. ... ... ..... 150,373 (138,260) 59,213
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year . .. ... ... .. ... L L, 91,695 242,068 103,808
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . . .. . .. ... . ... i §242068 § 103,808 $§ 163,021
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest . . . .. . e e e e e $ 23976 0§ 22615 % 17618
Income taxes, net of refunds . . . .. . ... ... . 23,565 22,942 7,458
Non-cash transactions:
Notes reccived forsalesaf assels . . ... .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ..., $§ 2000 § 293 § —_
Capital leases for cquipment . . .. . .. . L L. e e e e 1,142 36

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes| to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acfounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements follows:

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Blyth, Inc. and ils direct and indirect
subsidiaries, (the “Company”). The Company consolidates entities in which it owns or controls more
than 50% of the voting shares and investments where the Company has been determined to be the
primary beneficiary. The unowned portion is reflecied as minority interest. Investments in companies
that are not consolidated are reported using the equity method and are recorded in other assels in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. All ipter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operate on a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the
Saturday nearest to January 31. Most foreign operations maintain a calendar year accounting period,
which is consolidated with the Conipany’s fiscal period.

Estimates !

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the {inancial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Areas of the financial statements involving significant estimates include
inventory valuation reserves, bad debt reserves, chargeback reserves, restructuring and impairment
charges, income taxes, contingencies and litigation.

Credit Concentration

The Company’s credit sales are principally to department and gift stores, mass merchandisers and
distributors, which purchase the Company’s products for resale. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral. The Company makes provisions
for estimated credit losses. No single customer accounts for 109 or more of saies.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s international subsidiaries use their local currency as their functional currency.
Therefore, all balance sheet accounis of international subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the
year-end rates of exchange, and statement of earnings items are translated at the weighted average
exchange rales for the period. Resulting translation adjustments are included in Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCE"). Gains and losses on foreign currency transactions, which are
included in income, are not maleri'al.

Investments

The Company makes investments from time to {ime in the ordinary course of its business that may
include selected assels and product lines, long-term investments and/or joint ventures that either
complement or expand its existing business. The equity method of accounting is used to account for
invesiments in common stock in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence
over the operating and financial policies of the investee.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments

The Company uses foreipn exchange forward and options contracts 1o hedge the impact of forcign
currency fluctuations on foreign denominated inventory purchases, intercompany payables and certain
intercompany loans. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The Company hedged the net assets of certain of its foreign operations through foreign
currency forward contracts during fiscal 2006. This hedge terminated during fiscal 2006 and the net
after-tax gain related to the derivative net investment hedge instrument recorded in AOCI 1otaled
$1.8 million at January 31, 2008.

The Company has designated its forward exchange and options contracts on forecasted
infercompany purchases and future purchase commitments as cash flow hedges and, as such, as long as
the hedge remains effective and the underlying transaction remains probable, the effective portion of
the changes in the fair value of these contracts will be recorded in AOCI until earnings are affected by
the variability of the cash flows being hedged. With regard to commitments for inventory purchases,
upon payment of each commitment, the underlying forward contract is closed and the corresponding
gain or loss is transferred from AOCI and is included in the measurement of the cost of the acquired
asset. If a hedging instrument is sold or terminated prior to maturity, gains and losses are deferred in
AOCI until the hedged item is settled. However, if the hedged item is no longer likely to occur, the
resultant gain or loss on the terminated hedge is recognized into earnings immediately. Amounts
included in AOCI at January 31, 2008 are $0.6 million, net of tax, of which $0.5 million is expected to |
be transferred into earnings within the next twelve months upon payment of the underlying
commitment. The foreign exchange contracts outstunding have maturity dates through February 2009.

The Company has designated its foreign currency forward contracts related to intercompany loans
and intercompany payables as fair value hedges. The gains or Josses on the fair value hedges are
recognized into earnings and generally offset the transaction gains or losses in the foreign denominated
loans that they are intended o hedge.

For consolidated financial statement presentation, net cash flows from such hedges are classified in
the categories of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows with the ilems being hedged.

On July 10, 2003, the Company terminated the interest rate swap agreement in relation to
$50.0 million of its outstanding 7.90% Senior Notes, which mature on October 1, 2009. This
termination resulted in a deferred gain of approximately $5.0 million, which is being amortized over the
remaining term of the notes. At January 31, 2007 and 2008, there was $2.1 million and $1.3 million,
respectively, remaining to be amortized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instrumenls include accounts receivable, accounts payable, short-term and
long-term debt. Management believes the carrying values of these items approximale their estimated
fair values, except for long-term debt, as discussed in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financtal
Statements,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. Amounts due from credit card companics of $1.6 million
and $2.0 million for the settlement of credit card transactions are included in cash equivalents as of
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Aclcouming Policies (Continued)

January 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The Company holds its cash investments with high credit
quality financial institutions. At times such balances may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance limit.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out
method. The elements of cost are primarily material, labor and overhead. The Company recorded
provisions for obsolete, excess and unmarketable inventory in the Cost of goods sold line of the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) for fiscal 2006, 2007 and 2008 of $17.0 million,
$29.3 million and $4.8 million, 1'esp|ectively.

Shipping and Handling

The Company classifies shipping and handling fees billed to customers as revenue, and shipping
and handling costs are classified as cost of goods sold.

Property, Plant and EEquipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
expense for fiscal 2007 and 2008 was $32.8 million and $30.5 million, respectively. Depreciation is
provided principally by use of the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lives of the respective leases or the service lives of the
improvements, whichever is shorter. The Company records gains and losses from the sale of property,
plant and equipment in operating profit. During 2008, the Company recorded an $8.3 million
impairment charge, including $3.0 million of accreted depreciation, related to fixed assets at BHI NA.
This charge included $0.5 million recorded in Administrative expense and $7.8 million recorded in Cost

of goods sold. |

The principal estimated lives used in determining depreciation are as follows:

Buildings. . . ......... [f e e 27 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements| ................................ 5 1o 10 years
Machinery and equipment . ......... ... . ... ... ..., 5 to 12 years
Office furniture, data processing equipment and sofiware. . ... .. .. 3 10 7 years

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Lived Intangibles

Goodwil]l and other indefinite lived intangibles are subject to an assessment for impairment using a
two-step fair value-based test, which must be performed at least annually or more frequently if events
or circumstances indicate that goodwﬂl or other indefinite lived intangibles might be impaired. The
Company performs its annual assessment for impairment as of January 31, which is the Company’s
fiscal year-end. For goodwill, the first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying
amount, including goodwill. For each of the reporting units, the estimated fair value is determined
utilizing a combination of valuauon techniques, namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the
market multiple methodology. If the fair value of the reporting unil exceeds the carrying value, no
further analysis is necessary. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the
second step is performed. The second step compares the carrying amount of the goodwill to the fair
value of the goodwill, If fair valuelis less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is reported as a



BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

reduction to the asset and a charge to operating expense. (See Note 9 1o the Consolidated Financial
Statements.)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, and finite- lived
intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment is measured as the excess of the
carrying value over the fair value of the long-lived asset. Management will determine whether there has
been an impairment on such assets held for use in the business by comparing anticipated undiscounted
future cash flows from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group to the carrying value
of the asset.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss), as reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Tncome (Loss). AOCI is comprised of foreign
currency cumulative translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on certain investments in debt
and equily securilies, the net gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments and net investment
hedges and SFAS 158 adjustinents. The Company reports, by major contponents and as a single total,
the change in comprehensive income (loss) during the period as part of the Consoclidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity.

The following table presents the components of the Company’s accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss), net of tax, for the years ended January 31, 2007 and 2008:

Foreign Unrealized Net Net gain Accomtiiated
currency gain (loss) gain {loss) (loss) on net other
translation  on certain on cash investment  SFAS 158 comprehensive

adjustments investments Dow hedges hedges adjustinent income (loss)
{In thousands)
Balance at January 31, 2007 ... ... $18,526 $862 $ 45 $1,778 $ 919 $22.130

Balance at January 31, 2008 ... ... $22,219 $878 $(603) $1,778 $£1,172 $25,444

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is based on taxable income, statutory tax rates and the impact of non-
deductible items. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for ihe expected tax consequences of
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and (heir reported amounts, The
management of the Company pertodically estimates the probable tax obligations of the Company using
historical experience in tax jurisdictions and informed judgments. There are inherent uncerlaintics
related io the interpretation of tax regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Company (ransacts
business. The judgments and estimates made at a point in time may change based on the outcome of
tax audits, as well as changes to or further interpretations of regulations. If such changes take place,
there is a risk that the tax rate may increase or decrease in any period.

During fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008, the Company, in accordance with APB Opinion 23, “Accounting
for Income Taxes-Special Areas”, determined that a portion of its fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008
undistributed foreign earnings are not reinvested indefinitely by its non-U.S. subsidiaries, and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

accordingly, recorded a deferred income tax expense on these undistributed earnings. The Company
periodically determines whether the non-U.S. subsidiaries will invest their undistributed earnings
indefinitely and reassesses this detelrminalion as appropriate,

Revenue Recognition '

Revenues consist of sales 1o cusiomers, net of returns, and allowances. The Company recognizes
revenue upon delivery, when both title and risk of loss are transferred to the customer. The Company
presents revenues net of any taxes collecied from customers and remitted to governmental authorities.

Generally, sales orders are received via signed customer purchase orders with stated fixed prices
based on published price lists. The Company records estimated reductions to revenue for customer
programs, which may include special pricing agreements for specific customers, volume incentives and
other promotions. Should market conditions decline, the Company may increase customer incentives
with respect to future sales. The Company also records reductions to revenue, based primarily on
historical experience, for estimated customer returns and chargebacks that may arise as a result of
shipping errors, product damage in transit or for other reasons that can only become known subsequent
to recognizing the revenue. If the amount of actual customer returns and chargebacks were o increase
significantly from the estimated amount, revisions to the estimated allowance would be required. In
some instances, the Company receives payment in advance of product delivery. Such advance payments
occur primarily in the direct selling, and direct marketing channels and are recorded as deferred
revenue. Upon delivery of product for which advance payment has been made, the related deferred
revenue is rectassified to revenue. Also included in deferred revenue are gift card sales. Upon
expiration or redemption, the relatéd deferred revenue is reclassified to revenue.

Most of the Company’s sales made on credit are made to an established list of customers.
Although the collectability of sales made on credit is reasonably assured, the Company has established
an allowance for doubtful accounts for its trade and note receivables. The allowance is determined
based on the Company’s evaluation of specific customers’ abilily to pay, aging of receivables, historical
experience and the current economic environment. While the Company believes it has appropriately
considered known or expected outcomes, its customers’ ability (o pay their obligations, including those
to the Company, could be adversely affected by declining retail sales resulting from such factors as
contraction in the economy or a general decline in consumer spending.

Some of the Company’s business units offer seasonal dating programs pursuant to which customers
that qualify for such programs arc offered extended payment terms for seasonal product shipments. As
with other customers, customer orders pursuant to such seasonal dating programs are generally
received in the form of a written purchase order signed by an authorized representative of the
customer. Sales made pursuant to seasonal dating programs are recorded as revenue only upon delivery
either to the customer or 10 an agent of the customer depending on the freight terms for the particular
shipment and consistent with the cancept of “risk of loss.” The sales price for the Company’s producis
sold pursuant to such seasonal daling programs is fixed prior to the time of shipment to the customer,
Customers do not have the right to return product, except for rights to return that the Company
believes are lypical of the industry for such reasons as damaged goods, shipping errors or similar
occurrences. The Company is not required to repurchase products from its customers, nor does the
Company have any regular practice'of doing so. The Company believes that it is reasonably assured of
paymenl for products sold pursuant to such seasonal dating programs based on its historical experience
with the established list of customers eligible for such programs. In addition, the Company minimizes
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

its exposure to bad debts by utilizing established credit limits for each customer. If, however, product
sales by the Company’s customers during the seasonal selling period should fall significantly below
expectations, such customers’ financial condition could be adversely affected, increasing the risk of not
collecting these seasonal dating receivables and, possibly, resulling in additional bad debt charges. The
Company does not make any sales under consignment or similar arrangements.

Earnings per Common and Common Equivalent Share

Earnings per common and common equivalent share-basic are computed based upon the weighied
average number of shares outstanding during the period. Earnings per common and common
equivalent share-diluted reflects the potential dilution that could occur if options and fixed awards to
be issued under stock-based compensation arrangements were converled into common stock.

Employee Stock Option Plans

The Company has share-based compensation plans as described in Note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. On February 1, 2006, the Company adopled Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), “Sharcd-Based Payment,” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”) using the modified
prospective application transition method, which requires the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense, based on estimated fair values, for all share-based awards made to employees
and directors, including stock options, restricted stock. restricted stock units and performance share
units. The Company recognizes compensation expense for share-based awards cxpected to vest on a
straight line basis over the requisite service period of the award based on their grant date fair value.
The consolidated financial statements as of January 31, 2007 and 2008 reflect the impact of SFAS
No. 123(R). In accordance with the modified prospective applicatton transition method, the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2006 have not been restated 1o reflect, and does not include,
the impact of SFAS No. 123(R). As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), $3.1 million of
unearned compensation recorded in stockholders’ equily as of February 1, 2006 was reclassified to and
reduced the balance of additional contributed capital.

Advertising and Catalog Costs

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incurred, except the costs for direct-response
advertising, which are capitalized and amortized over the expected period of future benefits.

Direct-response advertising relates to the Company’s Miles Kimball business and consists primarily
of the costs to produce direct-mail order catalogs that include order forms for Miles Kimball’s
products. The capitalized production cosis are amortized for each specific catalog mailing over the
period following catalog distribution in proportion to revenues (orders) received, compared 1o total
estimated revenues for that particular catalog mailing, The amortization period is generally from three
to six months and does not exceed twelve months. Deferred direct-response advertising costs of
$4.7 million and $5.5 million were reported in Prepaid and other, in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheels as of January 31, 2007 and January 31, 2008, respectively.

In certain of the Company’s Wholesale and Direct Selling businesses, catalog production costs are
capitalized and expensed as the catalogs are distributed, generally over less than a twelve month period.
The Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect approximately $1.0 million and $1.1 million of these costs at
January 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 2. New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB iSSLled SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS
No. 1577). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
mecasurements. Accordingly, SFAS No. 157 does nol require any new fair value measurements. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet
adopted this standard and has not ¢ompleted the analysis to determine the effect on the Company’s
financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB Statements No. 115" (“SFAS No. 159”).
SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose, at specified election dates, 10 measure eligible items at fair
value (the “fair value option”). A business enlity shall report unrealized gains and tosses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting period. This
accounting standard is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year thal begins afler
November 15, 2007. The Company has elected to adopt FAS 159 effective on February 1, 2008, The
Company did not apply fair value accounting for any of its existing eligible assets and labilities as of
February 1. 2008 and therefore the'statement will not have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements. The Companylmay elect to apply the fair value accounting standards for any new
eligible assets and liabilities acquired after the adoption date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS No. 141R"”). SFAS No. 141R will significantly change the accounting for business combinations
in a number of areas including the treatment of contingent consideration, contingencies, acqguisition
costs, IPR&D and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS No. 141R, changes in deferred tax asset
valuation allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties in a business combination after the
measurement period will impact income tax expense. SFAS No. 141R s eifective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008,and, as such, the Company will adopt this standard in fiscal 2010.
The Company will be required to account for any acquisition entered into subsequent to January 3,
2009 in accordance with the provisions of this statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 160 will change the
accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests
and classified as a component of equity. This new cansolidation method will significantly change the
accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008 and, as such, the Company will adopt this standard in fiscal 2010.
The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, of SFAS No. 160 on the Company’s financial
statements.
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Note 2. New Accounting Pronouncements (Confinued)

In March 2008, the FASRH issued SFAS No., 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133”7 (“SFAS No. 1617). SFAS No. 161
requires disclosures of how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments
and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and how derivative instruments and
retated hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS
No. 161 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, with early adoption permitted.
The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, of SFAS No. 161 on the Company’s financial
statements.

Note 3. Business Acquisitions

On August 15, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in Boca Java, a small gourmet coffee
and tea company. The resulls of operations of Boca Java, which were not malerial, are included in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) of the Company since August 16, 2005. For segment
reporting purposes, Boca Fava is included in the Catalog & Internet segment. There have been no
significant acquisitions during fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2008.

Note 4. Business Divestitures and Discontinued Operations

Discontinued Operations

On April 12, 2006, the Company sold its European seasonal decorations business, Kaemingk B.V.
(“Kaemingk™), in the Wholesale segment for $41.2 million, to an entity controlled by the management
of Kaemingk. On June 16, 2006, the Company sold its European everyday home, garden and seasonal
business, Edelman B.V. (“Edelman”), and its Evropean gift and fiorist products business, Euro-Decor
B.V. (“Euro-Decor™), both in the Wholesale segment for $38.5 million, to an entity with which
members of the management of Edelman and Euro-Decor were affiliated. On August 17, 2006, the
Company sold its European mass candle business, Gies, which was part of the Wholesale segment for
$31.6 million. On December 20, 2006, the Company sold its Evropean prentium candle business,
Colony for $1.2 million. Accordingly, these businesses have all been reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss).

Included in the earnings (loss) from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings {Loss) for the years ended January 31, 2006 and 2007 are the following:

2006 2007
(In thousands)
Net Sales .. ..o e e $318,814 $108,134
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax ... .. 4326  (24,863)
Gain (loss) on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax .. .. § —  $(80,865)

Included in the earnings (loss) from discontinued operations were net operating income related Lo
Kaemingk of $7.9 million in fiscal 2006, and a nel operating loss of $0.3 million for fiscal 2007. In fiscal
2007, the Company recorded a non-lax deductible loss on sale of discontinued operations of
$18.4 million as a result of the sale of Kaemingk.
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Included in the earnings (loss) from discontinued operations were net operating income related to
Edelman and Euro-Dgor of $4.3 million, for fiscal 2006, and a net operating loss of $2.2 million for
fiscal 2007. In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company recorded a non-tax deductible goodwill
impairment charge of $16.7 million related to these businesses, which has been included in the loss on
sale of discontinued operations. In fiscal 2007, the Company recorded a non-taxable gain on the sale of
Edelman and Euro-Decor of $2.1 million.

Included in the earnings (!oss)‘from discontinued operations were net operating losses related to
Gies of $2.8 million and $9.9 million, in fiscal 2006 and 2007, respectively. Also included in the loss on
sale of discontinued operations for fiscal 2007 was a net of tax loss on the sale of Gies of $28.0 million,
which included a non-taxable charge for the impairment of the Gies business.

Included in the earnings (loss) from discontinued operations were net operating losses related to
Colony of $5.1 million and $12.4 million for fiscal 2006 and 2007, respectively. Also included in the loss
on sale of discontinued operations Ifor fiscal 2007 was a net of tax loss of $19.9 million for the sale of
the Colony business.

During fiscal 2006, the Company sold its seasonal decorations business, Impact Plastics, in the
Wholesale segment for approximately $7.6 million in cash and a promissory note of $2.0 million. The
sale resulted in a pre-ax loss of ;1p'proxinmtcly $1.6 million, which included the write-off of $7.8 million
of goodwill attributable to Impact as a resull of the sale. The loss of $1.6 million was recorded in
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss).

In April 2007, the Company sold certain assets and liabilities of the Blyth HomeScents
International North American mass channel candle business (“BHI NA”), which was part of the
Wholesale segment. The net assets were sold for $25.3 million, inclusive of proceeds from the sale of
overstock inventory of $1.3 million. Of this amount, $21.8 million was received at closing and a total of
$3.5 million was received subsequently in fiscal 2008,

Note 5. Restructuring and Impairment Charges

{

During the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007 and the first two quarters of fiscal 2008, the
Company recorded restructuring charges related (o the restructuring plan for its North American mass
channel home fragrance business, the major components of which were the closing of the Tijuana,
Mexico manufacturing facility, the elimination of less profitable customers, the streamlining of the stock
keeping unit (“SKU") base of the mass business, the outsourcing of certain products previously
manufactured by the Company and head count reductions, These charges included $1.4 million and
$0.7 million of severance costs recorded to cost of goods sold associated with the termination of
149 employees, in fiscal 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Also, during the fourth quarlei of fiscal 2007, the Company recorded charges related to the
restructuring of the North American operations of the Direct Selling segment in recognition of the
recent decline in sales in this channel. In association with the termination of 91 employees in fiscal
2007, severance costs of $1.5 million were recorded, $0.4 million of which was recorded in cost of
goods sold, $0.4 million was recorded in selling expense and $0.7 million in administrative expense.
During fiscal 2008 an additional $0.1 million of severance costs were recorded to administrative
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expense. Lease termination costs of $0.5 million and $1.5 million were recorded to costs of goods sold,
in fiscal 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Of the $26.3 million of restructuring costs recorded in fiscal 2007 and 2008, approximately
$1.4 million of accrued liabilities are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 31, 2008.
The Company expects $1.2 miilion of lease termination costs {0 be paid through fiscal 2013, and the
remaining severance of $0.2 million to be paid during fiscal 2009.

The following is a tabular rollforward of the restructuring charges described above that were
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Company:

Wholesale
Segment Dircet Sclling Segment
Severance Lease Severance
Costs Obligation Cost ‘Total
(In thousands)

Balance at February 1,2006 ... ...... ... ............ $ — $ — § - 5 -
Charges incurred during fiscal 2007 ... .............. 1,395 450 1,541 3,386
Payments made against 2007 charges .. .......... .... {926) — — (926)

Balance at Januvary 31,2007 . ...... ... ... . . ... .. ... $ 469 $ 450 §$ 1,541 $ 2,460
Charges incurred during fiscal 2008 . ................ 726 1,486 130 2,342
Payments made in fiscal 2008, ... ......... ... .. ..., (1,057) (785) (1,571) (3,413)

Balance at January 31,2008 ... ... .. . ... ... ... ... ... $ 138 $1,151 $ 100 § 1,389

Note 6. Investments

The Company invests in a number of financial securities inctuding debt instruments, preferred and
common stocks, a joint venture, and a limited partnership that primarily invests in other limited
partnerships who invest in real estate investment trusts and marketable securities. The Company
accounts for its investments in debt instruments and preferred and common stocks in accordance with
SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”. Certain preferred
stocks are bought and sold on a short-term basis with the sole purpose of generating a profit on price
differences. Accordingly, these preferred stocks are classified as trading securities and as such all
realized and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings
(Loss) in the Foreign exchange and other expense (income) line. These securities are valued based on
quoted prices in an active market. The Company also holds other debt and equity securilies which are
classified as available-for-sale. These securities are also valued based on quoted prices in an active
market or at cost which represent their fair value. Realized gains and losses on these securities are
determined using the specific identification method and are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings (L.oss) in the Foreign exchange and other expense {(income) line. Unrealized gains and
temporary unrealized losses on these securities are recorded in AOCI within Stockholders’ equity.
Unrealized losses that are considered other than temporary are recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss) in the Foreign exchange and other expense (income) line. The Company
accounts for its investment in a joint venture company which sells and manufactures charcoal and
candie related products in Australia under the equity method. The Company’s investment in a limited
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partnership is accounted for under the cost method in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force
Topic D-46, “Accounting for Limited Partnerships”, as the Company does not influence any operating
and financial policies of the investee and the Company’s ownership interest is less than three percent.
Under the cost method, if there is an other than temporary decline in the fair value of the investment
below its carrying value, the investment would be written down to its estimated fair value. The factors
considered in making impairment assessments include, but are not limited to, the severity and duration
of the impairment, market prices, market conditions, other third party information and management’s
ability and intent to hold the security for a reasonable period of time for the security to recover its
vilue, |

Investments, by category and classification:

January 31, Janwary 31,

2007 2008
) (In thousands)
Debi securitics .. .. . .. e e e e $129,725  $15,000
Equity securities . . .. .. S — 15,186
Total available-for-sale securities. . . ................. 129,725 30,186
Preferred stock . ... ... e e — 10,184
Other. . .. —_ 5
Total trading securilies;. .......... e — 10,189
Limited liability partnership. . ............. ... ... .. .. — 10,000
Joinl VEeRIUre . . .. . L e e - 2,315
Total invesiments. . . . R R R RP $129,725  $52.6%0

As of January 31, 2007 and 2008, the Company held $129.7 million and $25.0 million, respectively,
of auction rate securities (“ARS”) classified as available-for-sale securities. Auction rate securities are
generally long term debt instruments that provide liquidity through a Dutch auction process that resets
the applicable interest rate al predetermined intervals in days. This mechanism generally allows existing
investors Lo rollover their holdings and continue to own their respective securities or liquidate their
holdings by selling their securities at par value. The Company generally invests in these securities for
short periods of time as part of its cash management program. However, the recent uncertainties in the
credit markets have prevented the Company and other investors from liquidating their holdings by
sclling their securities at par value, Specifically, during the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, $20.0 million
of the $25.0 million auction rate security portfolio outstanding at January 31, 2008 failed to auction due
to sellers exceeding buy orders for those securities. For those securities that failed to auction, the
Company continues to hold these securities and accrues interest at a higher rate than similar securities
for which auctions have cleared. The Company’s auction rate securities are all AAA/Aaa rated
investments and consist of a student loan pertfolio with the vast majority of the student loans
guaranteed by the U.S, Government under the Federal Family Education Loan Program, municipal
bonds guaranteed by a monoline insurance company and a closed end fund consisting of preferred
stock of various ulilities that maintains assets equal to or at least 2009 of the liquidation preference of
its preferred stock. These securities were valued using 2 model that takes into consideration the
financial conditions of the issuer and the bond insurers as well as the value of the collateral, If the
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credit ratings of the issuer, the bond insurers or the collateral deteriorate, the Company may adjust the
carrying value of these investments. The Company is uncertain as to when the liquidity issues relating
to these investments will improve. Accordingly, the Company classified $20.0 million these securities as
non-current in the Investnients line in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 31, 2008.

Debt securities by contractual maturity are as follows:

January 31,  Januvary 31,

2007 2008
Duewithinoneyear .......... ... .. . ccoiiiiinnn... $ 7000 § —
Due between one and tenyears. ... ... ... ... oL — —
Dueafler ten years. . . . ... ...ttt e 122,725 15,000
Total . . e $129,725 $15,000

There were no realized or unrealized gains (losses) from the Company’s debt sccurities. All income
generated from these invesiments was recorded as interest income. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturities should the borrower have the right to call certain obligations.

As of January 31, 2008, the Company’s equity investment in RedEnvelope, Inc., classified as
available-for-sale, was decmed to be other than temporarily impaired as a resull of the deteriorating
financial condition of the investee that raised concerns about the investee’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, a charge of $1.2 million was recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings (Loss) to Foreign exchange and other expense (income) for the year ended January 31, 2008
in order to write the investment down 1o its fair value as of the balance sheet date. Further impairment
charges may be required to wrile off all or a portion of the invesiment of $5.2 million.

The total unrealized gain on those investments classified as trading that is reflecled in the
Company’s Consolidaled Statements of Earnings (Loss) as Foreign exchange and other expense
(income} for the year ended January 31, 2008 was not significant.

The investment in the limited liability partnership was purchased in fiscal 2008. As of January 31,
2008, this cost-method investment is $10 million. As of January 31, 2008, the Company deemed Lhe
reduction in estimated fair value of $0.5 million 1o be temporary, based upon the current stock market
performance, the investee's historical performance and discussions with the management of the
mvestee.
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The major components of Invéntories are as follows:

( January 31,
2007 2008
'1 {In thousands)
Raw materials. . .. .. .. e $ 22462 § 6,490
Work in process .. .... e e e 90 -
Finished goods . ... . ... .. ... .. . .. .. . oL 125,769 126,095
Total . ............ e e e e $148,321  $132,585
Note 8. Prepaid and Other
Prepaid and other consists of the following:
January 31,
2007 2008
' (In thousands)
Income and Other 1axes & . ...t e, $ 8,594 § 4,492
Catalogs .. ... ... .. e 5.687 6,654
Promotions . ... ... ... e 4,003 5,783
Other ............. e e e e e 15033 15,039
Tolal ............ e e e e e $33,317  $31,968

Note 9. Goodwill and Other Intnnéiblcs

Goodwill and other indefinite'lived iniangibles are subject to an assessment for impairment using a
two-step fair value-based test, which musi be performed at least annually, or more frequently if events
or circumstances indicate that goodwill or other indefinite lived intangibles might be impaired.

The Company performs its annual assessment of impairment as of January 31, which is the
Company’s fiscal year-end date. For goodwill, the first step is to identify whether a potential
impairment exists. This is done by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount,
including goodwill. Fair value for éach of the Company’s reporting units is estimated utilizing a
combination of valuation techniques, namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the market
multiple methodology. The discounted cash flow methodology assumes the fair value of an assel can be
estimated by the economic benefit or net cash flows the asset will generate over the life of the asset,
discounted to its present value. The discounting process uses a rate of return that accounts for both the
time value of money and the investment risk factors. The market multiple methodology estimates fair
value based on what other participants in the market have recently paid for reasonably similar assets.
Adjustments are made to compensate for differences between the reasonably similar assets and the
assets being valued. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value, no further analysis
is necessary. The fair value of the reportmg units is derived by calculating the average of the oulcome
of the two valuation techniques described above. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds
its fair value, the second step is pérformed. The second step compares the carrying amount of the
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goodwill to the estimated fair value of the goodwill. If fair value is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is reported as a reduction lo the goodwili and a charge to operating expense.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company identified triggering events which caused
the Company to reassess goodwill for impairment in two reporting units within the Whalesale segment.
In the Sterno reporting unit, the Company’s decision to discontinue sales of a new product line coupled
with sharply rising commeodity costs led the Company to perform an impairment analysis of goodwill in
the reporting unit. In the Wholesale Premium reporting unit, a business restructuring resulted in a
significantly changed near-term outlook for the businesses that gives effect to the changing business
environment which led the Company to perform an impairment analysis of the goodwill in this
reporting unit. As o result of these analyses, the goodwill in both reporting units was determined to be
impaired, as the fair value of the reporting units was less than the carrying value of the reporting unils
including goodwill. The decrease in the fair value of the reporting units was due to a significant
decrease in the projected results for the full fiscal year and future years as a result of the factors
previously discussed. The estimated fair value of the reporting units was determined utilizing a
combination of valuation techniques, namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the market
multiple methodology. As a result, the Company recorded a non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment
charge of $36.8 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, in the Wholesale segment.

As discussed in Note 4 to the Conselidated Financial Statements, the Company sold its European
seasonal and everyday decorations businesses, Kaemingk, Edelman and Euro-Decor, in the first half of
fiscal 2007, which resulted in a reduction in goodwill attributable to these businesses totaling
$66.5 million.

As a result of the Company’s annual fourth quarter impairment analyses in fiscal 2006 and 2007,
the Company determined that goodwill balances existing at reporting units in the Wholesale segment
were impaired. In fiscal 2006, the reporting units experienced a substantial decline in operating
performance when compared to prior years’ results and budgeted fiscal 2006 expectations and beyond.
Therefore, the Company recorded a non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $53.3 million in
the Wholesale segment in fiscal 2006. In the second half of fiscal 2007, the remaining reporting unit
within the Wholesale segment experienced a further decline in operating performance when compared
to prior years’ results and budgeted fiscal 2007 expectations. As a result of the fiscal 2007 year-end
goodwill impairment assessment, the Company recorded a non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge
of $12.0 million, that when combined with the $11.7 million charge in the second quarter effectively
wrote off the remaining goodwill balance within the Wholesuale segment.

As a result of the Company’s annual fourth quarter impairment analyses in fiscal 2008, the
Company determined that the goodwill balance at the Miles Kimball reporting unit, in the Catalog &
Internet segment, was impaired. In fiscal 2008, the Miles Kimball business experienced lower revenue
growth than anticipated when compared to the fiscal 2008 budget and beyond. The Company believes
this shortfall in performance was primarily attributable to decreased consumer spending due to changes
in the business environment and adverse economic conditions. As a result of the impairment analysis
performed, the goodwill in this reporting unit was determined to be impaired, as the fair value of the
reporting unit was less than the carrying value of the reporting unit including goodwill. Accordingly, the
Company recorded a non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $46.8 million in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2008.
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The following table shows changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended
January 31, 2007 and 2008, by operating segment:

Dircct Catalog

Selling & Internet Wholesale Total
(In thousands)

Goodwill at February 1, 2006 .. .................... $2,298 § 76,308 $ 106521 §$ 185,127
Euro-Decor pension adjustment . .. ... .. . L. 6,659 6,659
Kaemingk earn out payment .. .................... 212 212
Impairment charges . .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... (48,812)  (48,812)
Goodwill disposed of refated to the sale of:

Kaemingk ....... ... ... . . i i (31,775)  (31,775)

Edelman and Euro-Decor. . . . . R R R R (34,736) (34,730)
Boca Java adjustment . ... ... L L e 76 76
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. ............ 1,931 1,931

Total adjustments ... ....... 0. . . ... .. e - 76 (106,521)  (106,445)
Goodwill at January 31,2007 ...................... 2,298 76,384 — 78,682
Impairment charges . ... ... .. o o (46,828) — (46,828)

Total adjustments . . ... .. ... .. —  (46,828) — {46,528)
Goodwill at January 31,2008 ... ................... $2,298 $ 29,556 % — $ 31854

Other intangible assets consisted of indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks and customer lists
refated 1o the Company's acquisitions of Miles Kimball and Walter Drake in fiscal 2004 and are
reported in the Catalog & Internet segment. The indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks were
valued at $28.1 million and $25.7 million as of the years ended January 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.
The Company does not amortize the indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks, but rather test for
impairment annually as of January 31, and upon the occurrence of a triggering event. As part of the
previously mentioned impairment analysis for fiscal 2008, the Company recorded an impairment charge
of $2.4 million, related to certain of the Company’s trade names, which were determined to be
impaired due to changes in the business environment and adverse economic conditions currently
experienced due to decreased consumer spending.

Other amortizable intangible zllssets consisted of the following (In thousands):

. Januvary 31, 2007 January 31, 2008
Accumulated Accomulated
Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Customer lists .................. $15,000 $7,750 $7,250  $15,000 $9,250 $5,750

Amortization expense is being recorded on an accelerated basis over the estimated lives of the
customer lists ranging from 10 to 12 years. Amortization expense was $1.8 million in fiscal 2007 and
$1.5 million in fiscal 2008. Estimated amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is as follows:
$1.5 million, $1.1 million, $1.0 million, $0.8 million, and $0.6 mitlion. The weighted average remaining
life of the Company’s customer lis'ls was 6.5 years at January 31, 2008.
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Accrued expenses consist of the following:

January 31,

2007 2008

(In thousands)
Compensation and benefits . . ... ..... ... ... ........... $17,606 $23,530
Deferred revenue . . .. . i 10,465 16,350
Promotional . . .. ... .. e e 14.657 12,135
Interest payable . ... .. ... .. . . ... . . 6,173 4,110
Taxes, other thanincome . ... ... ... . ... . ... .. . ..... 5,267 3,206
Self-INSUrance resCrves . .. ..o ottt e e e 3,226 2,223
Postage and freight. .. .. ... ... ... . 2,748 2,190
Other .. e L 17,596 14,301
Total ... e $77,738  §78,045

Note 11. Long-Term Decbt
Long-term debt consists of the following:

January 31,

2007 2008
(In thousands)
7.90% Senior NOIBS .. ..t § 97700 § 49,501
5.50% Senior Notes .. ... ... .. i 99,856 99,876
Credit Facilities. . . . ... ... . e i 3,828 —
Other . ... e 14,394 0,438
215,779 158,815
Less current maturities .. ... ... .. i {987) {928)

$214,792  $157,887

During fiscal year 2008, the Company repurchased $48.4 million of its 7.9% Senior Notes, paid
down $4.1 million of its industrial revenue bond obligations and reduced its European credit facility
and other debt reductions of $4.2 million for a total reduction in long term debt of $56.7 million.

On October 2, 2006, the Company executed Amendment No. 1 (the “Amendment”) to its
unsecured revolving credit facility (“Credit Facility’) dated as of June 2, 2005. The Amendment
(1) reduced the amount available for borrowing under the Credit Agreement from $150.0 million to
$75.0 million, (ii) changed the initial termination date from June 2, 2010 to June 1, 2009, (iii) increased
the rate of interest applicable to loans under the Credit Agreement and (iv) modified some of the
covenants. The Company has the ability to increase the amount available for borrowing, under certain
circumstances, by an additional $50.0 million. The Credit Facility may be used for seasonal working
capital needs and general corporate purposes, including strategic acquisitions. The Credit Facility
contains, amang other provisions, requirements for maintaining certain financial ratios and limitations
on cerlain payments. As of January 31, 2008, the Company was in compliance with such provisions.
Amounts outstanding under the amended Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, at
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JPMorgan Chase Bank’s prime rate or Eurocurrency rate plus a spread ranging from 0.80% to 1.70%
caiculated on the basis of the Company’s senior unsecured long-term debt rating. Amounts available for
borrowing under this facility were approximately $68.7 million as of January 31, 2008, reflecting

$6.3 million in outstanding letters of credit.

In May 1999, the Company filed a sheif registration statement for issuance of up to $250.0 million
in debt securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission. On September 24, 1999, the Company
issued $150.0 million of 7.90% Senior Notes due Qctober 1, 2009 at a discount of approximately
$1.4 million, which is being amortized over the life of the notes. In fiscal 2007 and 2008, the Company
repurchased $52.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, of these notes. Such notes contain, among
other provisions, restrictions on liens on principal property or stock issued to collateralize debt. At
January 31, 2008, the Company was in compliance with such provisions. Interest is payable semi-
annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1. On October 20, 2003, the Company issued $100.0 million
5.50% Senior Notes due on November 1, 2013 at a discount of approximately $0.2 million, which is
being amortized over the life of thé notes. Such notes contain provisions and restrictions similar to
those in the 7.90% Scnior Notes. At January 31, 2008, the Company was in compliance with such
provisions. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 1 and November 1. The notes may be
redeemed in whole or in part at any time at a specified redemption price. The proceeds of the debt
issuances were used for general corporate purposes.

As of January 31, 2007 and 2008, Miles Kimball had approximately $9.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively, of long-term debt outstanding under a real estate morigage note payable to John Hancock
Life Insurance Company, which matures June 1, 2020. Under the terms of the note, payments of
principal and interest are required monthly at a fixed interest rate of 7.89%.

As of January 31, 2007 and 2008, CBK had $4.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively, of long-term
debt outstanding under an Industrial Revenue Bond (“IRB"), which matures on January 1, 2025. The
change is due to the pay down of the principal by $4.1 million in November 2007. The bond is backed
by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by Bank of America. The loan is collateralized by certain of
CBK's assets. The amount outstanding under the IRB bears interest at short-term floating rates, which
equaled a weighted average interest rate of 4.4% at January 31, 2008. Payments of principal are
required annually and interest payments are required monthly under the terms of the bond.

Maturities under debt obligations for the fiscal years ending January 31 are as follows (In
thousands): :

2000 $ 928
2000 . e 50,131
7 544
2012 .00 0 0 T 549
2013 L e 583
Thereafter. ... .... ... S e e 106,080

5 $158,815

The estimated fair value of the Company’s $215.8 million and $158.8 million total long-term debt
(including current portion) at January 31, 2007 and 2008 was approximately $205.7 million and
$141.9 million. respectively. The fair value is determined by quoted market prices, where available, and
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from analyses performed by investment bankers using current interest rates considering credit ratings
and the remaining lterms to maturity.

As of January 31, 2008, the Company had a total of $2.0 million available under an uncommitted
facility with Bank of America 1o be used for letters of credit. The issuance of letters of credit under
this facility will be available until January 31, 2009. As of January 31, 2008, no letters of credit were
outstanding under this facility.

Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans |

On January 31 2007, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure requirements of SFAS \
No. 158, “Emplovers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”, an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132R (“SFAS No. 158”). The Company was not
required to adopt the required change 1o a fiscal year-end measurement date until the year ended
January 31, 2008. The Company had chosen to adept this provision for the year ended January 31,
2007, as permitted by SFAS No. 138,

SFAS No. 158 required the Company 1o recognize the funded status of its defined benefit pension
plan in the Conseolidated Balance Sheets as of the measurement date of January 31, 2007, with a
corresponding adjustment to AOCI. The funded status is the difference between the fair value of plan
assets and the projected benelit obligation. The adjustment to AOCI at adoption represents the net
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses not yet recorded as a component of other comprehensive income.

In accordance with SFAS No. 158, the Company recorded an adjustment 10 its Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2007 reducing its projected benefit obligation by $1.5 million with a
corresponding credit to AOCI, net of taxes of $0.9 million and the remaining credit to deferred income
taxes of $0.6 million. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company’s Consolidated
Stalements of Earnings (Loss) for the years ended January 31, 2007 and 2008.

In fiscal 2008 the Company recorded a credit to AOCI, net of deferred taxes, of $0.3 million in
order to reflect the changes in the funded status of the Miles Kimball Company Retirement Plan
(“Plan™).

Certain employees of Miles Kimball are covered by the Plan. This non-contributory, defined
benefil retirement plan provides benefils based on years of service and employee compensation for
specificd periods. When the Company acquired Miles Kimball on April 1, 2003, a decision was made to
cease the accrual of benefits for all Plan participants, excepl 10 the extent thal a benefil accrual is
required to comply with Section 416 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan was frozen effective
May 31, 2003. All vested benefits that have been accrued as of May 31, 2003 will continue 10 be held
for participants under the terms of the Plan. The Plan was terminated, effective October 31, 2007.
During fiscal year 2009, the Company will file for approval of the plan termination with the Pension
Benefit Guaranty Corporation and the Internal Revenue Service. Pursuant (o the termination, the
Company purchased a revocable annuity with a AAA rated life insurance company, covering all
participants in the Plan, Upon approval for termination, this annuity will become irrevocable and the
Company will be relieved from primary responsibility of the pension obligation. The Company expects
Lo receive the approval in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, and at that time associated balances within
AOCI of $1.2 million will be recognized as a reduction in Administrative expense. No assurances can
be made that application for plan termination with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and the
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Internal Revenue Service will be accepted. The Company's defined benefit pension plan uses a
January 31 measurement date.

I
As of January 31, the status of the Company’s defined benefit pension plan was as follows (In
thousands):

! 2006 2007 2008
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year. . . ........... $13,758 $14,316 $14.086
Interest cost .. ........ B 732 764 761
Actuarial (gain)/loss. . . . . e 675 (138) (804)
Benefits paid . . .. ... ... e (849) (856) (52%)
Benefit obligation, end of Iyear .................. $14,316 $14,086 $13,518

2006 2007 2008

Change in plan assets: !
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year . ... ... .. $10,148 $ 9977 $13,117
Actval return on planassets .. . .......... ... ..., 417 1,304 603
Employer contributions ....................... 261 2,590 323
Benefitspaid. . ........ ... ... . ... ... (849) (856) (525)
Reimbursement for overpayment of benefits .. ... ... — 102 —
Fair value of plan assels, end of year ............. $ 9977 $13,117 §$13,518
Under funded status .. .........coovriiinnnn... $(4339) § (969) § —
Unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss . .............. (824)
Net amount recognized . ; ..................... $(5,163)

As previously mentioned, the Company purchased a revocable annuity with a AAA rated life
insurance company covering all participants in the plan, As a result of this purchase the estimated
liability is fully offset by the plan assets.

The total net gain recorded in SAOCI, net of taxes, as of January 31, 2007 and 2008 was
$0.9 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for
the pension plan as of the measurement date were as follows (In thousands):

: 2006 2007 2008
Projected benefit obligation ... ... ... ... . ... $14,316 $14,086 $13,518
Accumulated benefit obligation ................. $14,316 $14,086 $13,518
Fairvalue of planassets . . . . .. ................. $ 9977 $13,117 §$13,518
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Components of the nel periodic benefit cost of the Company’s noncontributory defined benefit
pension plan for the ycars ecnded January 31 were as follows (In thousands):
2006 2007 2008
$733 3764 $761

(787)  (886)  (988)
28y  — —

$ (82) $(122) $(227)

Interesl COSE. .. ... o e
Expected relurn onplanassels . ........... ... .....
Amortization of actuarial gain. . ........ ... ... .. .....

Net periodic benefit cost (gain)......................

Assumptions wsed to determine net periodic benefit cost and the projected benefit obligation as of
and for the years ended January 31 were as follows:

006 2007
DisCOUNE TALE . . .. o e e e e 5.50% 5.50%
Expected returnon plan assets . ........ ... ... ... .. . .., 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels . .. ... ... ... ... ..., 250% 2.50%

Due to the purchase of the annuity, the net periodic bencfil cost and the project benefit cbligation
were no longer estimated for future periods,
The defined benefil pension plan asset allocation as of the measurement date of January 31,
presented as a percentage of total plan assets, was as follows:
2006 2007 2008

60.5% 48.4% N/A
36.9% 45.6% N/A

Equity securities . ... ... ... ..

Debt securities .. ... .t i e
O her .« e e e 2.6% 6.0% 100.0%
Total . o o e e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

As stated above, the Company has purchased an annuity that covers all future benefil obligations
and expects (0 receive the approval from the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and a
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service providing approval of the Plan termination, and
absolving the Company of any future obligation to the participants. As a result, the Company was not
required to make a contribution to the Plan in fiscal 2008, and does not anticipate any contributions or
benefit payments to the Plan in the future, contingent upon the aforementioned approvals. The level of
these contributions is within minimum required and maximum allowable government prescribed levels

for the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

Certain of the Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries provide pension benefits to employees or
participate in government sponsored programs. The cost of these plans or government sponsored
programs is not significant to the Company. Most employees outside the United States are covered by
povernment sponsored and administered programs. Other contributions lo government mandated
programs are not expected o be significant,

57




BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

[
Note 12, Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

The Company has defined contribution employee benefit plans in both the United States and
certain of its foreign locations, covéring substantially all eligible non-union employees. Contributions to
all such plans are principally at the Company’s discretion except for the Section 401(k) Company
matching contributions, which became guaranteed effective April 1, 2002. Total expense related to all
defined contribution plans for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was $6.8 million,
$6.8 million and $5.7 million, respectively. The decrease in fiscal 2008 from the prior periods is
primarily due to the headcount reductions made during fiscal 2007 and 2008.

The Company has entered into an employment agreement with its Chairman and CEO, Robert B.
Goergen, dated as of August 1, 2000, as amended by Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 15, 2002,
Amendment No. 2 dated as of March 31, 2004, Amendment No. 3 dated as of September 26, 20006,
Amendment No. 4 dated June 6, ZPO7 and Amendment No. 5 dated December 13, 2007. Benefits
pursuant to the agreement have been provided by a purchased annuity insurance policy.

|
Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company utilizes operating and capital leases for a portton of its facilities and equipment.
Generally, the leases provide that the Company pay real estate taxes, mainlenance, insurance and other
occupancy expenses applicable Lo leased premises. Certain leases provide for renewal for various
periods at stipulated rates. '

The minimum future rental commitments under operating and capital leases are as follows {In
thousands): ‘

For the years ending Janu'ary 31,

2000 . e e e $16,952
721 1) 14,671
2000, ... e 11,870
20 e e 9,816
2013 ... PR 8,446
Therealter . . ... . e e e e 17,857

Total minimum payments required .. ... .. ... .. o oL oL $79.612

i
Rent expense for the years ended January 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was $19.5 million, $21.4 million
and $18.5 million, respectively.

The Company has contingent liabilities that have arisen in the ordinary course of its business,
including pending litigation. The Company believes the outcome of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of aperations, or cash flows.

Pursuant to the employment agreement identified above, upon the death of both Mr. Goergen and
his spouse, the Company will, upon the demand of the estate of either Mr. Goergen or his spouse, buy
back from such estate up to 7,500.000 shares of Company Common Stock within 90 days of such
demand at the fair market value tliereof (as defined in the employment agreement) or register the
public offer and sale by such estaté of up to 7,500,000 shares of Common Stock. In connection with the
employment agreement, the Company and Mr. Goergen entered into a registration rights agreement
relating to the registration of up to 7,500,000 shares of Common Siock as described above in the event
that the Company chooses nol to purchase such shares upon the death of both Mr. Goergen and his
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spouse. There is no specified effective date or stock price requirement in the agreements, The
Company will not be obligated to purchase or register such shares, nolwithstanding the death of both
Mr. Goergen and his spouse, if the survivor’s estate, or his or her beneficiaries, as the case may be, can
then sell all of the shares of the Common Siock owned by them without registration. The Company has
recarded a liability of approximately $0.2 million at January 31, 2008 related to the estimated future
cosls to register the securities.

[n October 2007, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“Customs™) made a demand to the
Company for payment of duties allegedly owed by one of its subsidiaries. In November 2007, the
Company filed a petition disputing Customs’ claims. During fiscal 2008, the Company established a
reserve for this matter that it believes is adequate based on cxisting facts and circumstances. Although
the final resolution of this proceeding is uncertain, based on currently available information, the
Company believes that the ultimate outcome will not have a malerial adverse effect on its financial
position, cash flows or results of operations.

Note 14. Guarantees

From time to time, the Company is party 1o agreemenis under which it may be obligated to
indemnify a third party with respect to certain matters. Typically, these obligations arise as a result of
leases entered into by the subsidiaries, under which Blyth agrees to indemnify a third parly against
losses arising from a breach of representations related (o lease obligations assumed, In these
circumstances, payment by Blyth is conditioned on the other parly making a claim pursuant Lo the
procedures specified in the lease. These procedures generally allow Blyth to challenge the other parly’s
claims. In addition, Blyth’s obligations under these agreements may be limiled in terms of time and
amount. Historically, payments made by Blyth under these arrangements have not had a material effect
on the business, financial condition or results of operations. Blyth believes that if it were to incur a loss
in any of these matters, such loss would not have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition or results of operations. The maximum potential amount of future payments due under these
lcase arrangements approxtmates $19.2 million. These amounts are included as part of the Company’s
consolidated lease commitments as reported in Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies. The lcase
guarantees have expiration dates through fiscal 2014,

Note 15, Income Taxes
Earnings (loss) before provision for income taxes:

Year ended January 31,

2006 2007 2008
{Int thovsands)
United States . ... ovoe et $(27,049) $(49,549) $(40,159)
Foreign ........ ... . ... ... . . 53,493 54,918 61,884

$ 26444 & 5369 $21,725
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Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations consisis of the following:

Year ended January 31,
2006 2007 2008
(In thousands)

Current income tax expense:

Federal ........... LU § 306 $3368 § 211
State ......... . ... e 791 1,896 8,936
Foreign ........... ff e e 18,205 6,824 8,592

19,302 12,088 17,739
Deferred income tax expense {benefit):

Federal .« .o oot (9,116)  (7,442) (6,516)
SIAE « o oo (781)  (1.386)  (673)
FOTQIEN - oo oo oo (3026)  (596) (3)

(12,923)  (9,424)  (7,192)
i $ 6379 $ 2,664 $10,547

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Janwary 31,
2607 2008

(In thousands)

|
Deferred 1ax assets: '

AmMOrlization . ... ... .. . . . e $ 7,163 $ 11,376
Accrued expenses and other .. ... .. ... ..o oL 1,910 3,107
Allowance for doubtful receivables ................... 783 1,366
Employee benefitplans. . .. .. ... . Lo o oL 2,032 3,063
[nventory reserves . .. ... ... ... .. ... it 9,087 4,740
Net operating loss and other tax credit carryforwards . ... .. 5,799 10,849
Capital loss carryforwarg ........................... 15,677 12,359
Contingency Ieserves .. ..............c.vevnarn.... e 8.555
Other reserves . ... .. e e e e 5,860 2,450
Valuation allowance .......... ... .. .. ... ... .. (18,610) (17,493)

29,707 40,372
Deferred tax liabilities:

Prepaids. . ... . L (5,025)  (5,016)
Undistributed foreign earnings ............ ... .. .. ... (12,608)  (16,065)
Depreciation and amorliization ...................... (17,369 (12,013)

. (35,002}  (33,094)

Net deferred tax (liability)/asset ... ... ... ............. $ (5,295) § 17,278
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The valualion allowance relates 1o certain U.S. and non-U.S. tax loss carryforwards and a U.S.
capital loss carryforward, for which the Company believes, due to various limitations in these fareign
jurisdictions related (o the tax loss carryforwards and due 1o limitations imposed by U.S. tax
regulations, il is mote likely than not that such bencfits will not be realized. At January 31, 2008, the
Company had a $68.9 million net operaling loss carryforward, which consisted of approximately
$8.0 million of U.8. federal net operating losses that will expire on January 31, 2023 and 2026,
$51.1 million of U.S. state net operating losses that will begin to expire in 2013, and foreign net
operating losses of $9.8 million, which will begin to expire in 2012. Also, at January 31, 2008, the
Company had a $32.9 million U.S. capital loss carryforward of which the majorily will expire on
January 31, 2012,

As of January 31, 2008, the Company, in accordance with APB Opinion 23, Accounting for Income
Taxes, Special Areas, determined that $79.6 million of undistributed foreign earnings were not reinvested
indefinitely by its non-U.S. subsidiaries. An accumulated deferred tax liability has been recorded against
these undistribuied earnings of $16.1 million. Of that amount, $0.3 million was recorded as a reduction to
the Company’s net earnings on these undistributed earnings in the current period. This current period net
earnings reduction has been reduced, as compared (o the prior year, as a result of the Company’s recording
of a portion of the undistributed earnings deferred tax liability through other comprehensive income. This
amount has also been reduced as a result of the Company’s plans to utilize certain benefits in the future
related to tax attributes generated from our prior period European wholesale business sales. The Company
periodically determines whether the non-U.S, subsidiaries will invest their undistributed earnings indefinitely
and reassesses this determination as appropriate.

As of January 31, 2008, undistributed earnings of forcign subsidiaries considered permanently
reinvested for which deferred income taxes have not been provided were approximately $71.8 million.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed at the federal statutory
rate is as follows:

!
Year ended Janvary 31, |

2606 2007 2008
(In thousands)
Tax at stalulory Tate . .. ... e $ 9255 § 1,879 § 7,387
Tax effect of:
U.S. state income taxes, net of federal benefit .. .............. 964 138 (1,567)
Tax exempt IN1EIest . . . . .. ottt e (41)  (1L,537y  (1,677)
Permanent differences . .. ... .. L o i (621) (263) 17
Recovery of nole receivable reported in discontinued operations . . . — (1,797) —
Valuation allowance on stale net aperating losses, net of federal
benefit . ... ... . e 1,935
Release of valualion allowance on capital loss carryforward . . .. . .. — — (2,742)
Worldwide movement in contingent reserve balance ... ....... .. (6,051) 1,882 5,781
Non-deductible goodwill impairment .. ... ... ... . oo L 5,407 3,072 10,625
Forcign dividend and subpart Fincome .. ................... 10,336 (1,280) 983
Tax on undistributed foreign earnings . . . ... ... ... ... ... — 12,608 275
Foreign tax rate differential . .. ... ... ... .. ... . L L. (10,343)  (13,367) (11,932)
OthEr . e (2,527) 1,329 1,462

$ 6379 § 2664 § 10,547
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In December 2004, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 109-2 (“FAS 109-2"), “Accounting and
Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs
Creations Act of 20047 (“AJCA™). The AJCA introduced a limited time 85% dividends received
deduction on the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer (repatriation provision),
provided certain criteria were met. FAS 109-2 provides accounting and disclosure guidance for the
repatriation provision. On January 24, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a demestic reinvestment
plan for approximately $130.0 million in foreign earnings, which were previously considered
permanently reinvested in non-U.S.'legal entities. Of this amount, $91.0 million qualified for the
favorable treatment under the AJCA The funds were repatriated to the United States in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006. The tax cost 'of this distribution was $7.6 million. As part of its repatriation plan,
the Company reinvested the repatriated amount domestically in a wide range of initiatives, including
the hiring and training of U.S. workers, research and development efforts, qualified retirement plan
funding, capilal expenditures to support the U.S. businesses, advertising and markeling with respect o
its various trademarks, brand names and rights to intangible property, all consistent with the
requirements of the legislation.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes,” (“FIN 48”) effective on February 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN
48, the Company recognized a $6.1 million increase in the hability for unrecognized tax benefits and an
asset of $3.3 million. These amounts accounted for a net $2.8 million reduction to the Company’s
February 1, 2007, Retained earnings balance. The following is a reconciliation of the total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits excluding interest and penalties since the inception of FIN 48 on February 1,
2007 through Japuary 31, 2008:

i {In thousands)

Balance at February 1,2007 ... ... ... ... .. ... . o oL $17,066
Gross increases—tax positions prior periods .. .. ... ... oL L 3,439

iti i ods ... (3,823)
Gross increases—current period tax positions .. .. ... ... .. ... 10,230
Decreases—settlements wuh taxing authorities . . ............. ... (175)
Reductions—lapse of statute of limitations . . . ... ........... ..., —
Reclassification of certain items to deferred taxes . ... ... . ...... .. (1,608)
Balance at January 31,2008 ......... .. .. ... . ... L $25,129

As of January 31, 2008, the Company had $25.1 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits,
excluding interest and penalties. Of this amount, $24.3 million represents the portion that, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax rate. The Company recognizes inlerest and penallies related
to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. As of January 31, 2008, the Company had $5.9
million accrued for the payment of interest and penalties.

The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits as of January 31, 2008 that may be resolved within fiscal 2009 is approximately $6.5 million, as
a result of the filing of amendment tax returns, closing of statutes, and audit scttlements. Due to the
varfous jurisdictions in which the Company files tax returns and the uncertainty regarding the timing of
the settlement of tax audits, it is possible that there could be other significant changes in the amount of
unrecognized tax benefits in fiscal 2009, but the amount cannot be estimated.

|
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiclion, various state and local
jurisdictions, and many foreign jurisdictions, The number of years with open tax audits varies depending
on the lax jurisdiction, The Company’s major taxing jurisdictions include the United States (including
the state jurisdictions of Illinois and Massachusetts), Canada, Germany and Switzerland. In the Uniled
States, the Company is not currently under audit by the Internal Revenue Service, but it is open to
examination for the fiscal years 2005 through 2007. The Company is currently under audit in the state
of Illinois for the fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005 and is open o examination for the fiscal years 2006
and 2007. The Company is currently under audit in the commonwealth of Massachusetts for the fiscal
years 2002, 2003 and 2004 and is open to examination for the fiscal years 2005 through 2007. The
Company is currently under audit in the state of Wisconsin for the fiscal years 2002, 2003, 2004 and
2005 and is open to examination for the fiscal years 2006 and 2007. In Germany. the Company is
currcntly under examination for the fiscal year 2004 and open 10 cxamination for fiscal years 2005
through 2007. In Swilzerland, the Company is open to examination for fiscal year 2007, The Company
does not anticipate that the resolution of the Illinois, Massachusetts, Wisconsin, and German audits will
materiatly impact its financial statements.

Note 16. Stock Based Compensation
Summary of Plans

As of January 31, 2008, the Company had one active stock-based compensalion plan, the 2003
Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2003 Plan™), available to granl future awards, and two inactive stock-based
compensation plans {the Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan and the Amended
and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors), under which vested and
unexercised options remain outstanding. There were 6,500,100 shaces authorized for grant under these
plans as of January 31, 2008, and there were approximately 3,700,000 shares available for grant under
these plans. The Company’s policy is to issue new shares of common stock for all stock options
exercised and restricted stock grants,

The Board of Directors and the stockholders of the Company have approved the adoption and
subsequent amendments of the 2003 Plan. The 2003 Plan provides for grants of incentive and
nonqualified stock options. stock appreciation rights. restricted stock, restricted stock units,
performance shares, performance units, dividend equivalents and other stock unit awards to officers
and employees. The 2003 Plan also provides for grants of nonqualified stock options to directors of the
Company who are not, and who have not been during the immediately preceding 12-month period,
officers or employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Restricted stock and restricted stock
units (“RSUs”) are granted to certain employees to incent performance and retention. RSUs issued
under the plans provide that shares awarded may not be sold or otherwise transferred until restrictions
have lapsed. The release of RSUs on each of the vesting dates is contingent upon continued active
employment by the employee until the vesting dates. At the 2007 Annual Meeting, each non-employee
director was granted 1,500 RSUs vesting in two equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of
the date of grant. In August 2007, in accordance with the 2003 Plan, an additional 3,000 RSUs were
granted to a new member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

The 1otal compensation expense related to all stock-based compensation plans for fiscal years 2006,
2007 and 2008 was approximately $1.1 million, $1.5 million and $1.4 miliion, respectively. The tax
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benefii recognized for fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 2008 was approximately $0.4 miltion, $0.6 million and
$0.5 million, respectively.

Total stock-based compensation benefit included in discontinued operations for fiscal years 2006
and 2007 was approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. There were no stock-based
compensation benefits included in discontinued operations in fiscal 2008. No compensation cost was
capitalized as part of inventory.

Impact of Adoption of 123(R) |

On February 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) which requires the measurement and
recognition of compensation expense for all share-based paymeni awards made 1o employees and
direciors, including employce stock options, restricied stock and RSUs based on estimaled fair values.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the
portion of stock-based payment awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period. Stock-
based compensation expense recognized in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss)
for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2007 and 2008 includes compensation expense for restricted
stock, RSUs and stock-based awards granted subsequent to January 31, 2006 based on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance {vith the provisions of SFAS 123(R). The Company recognizes these
compensation costs net of a forfeiture rate for only those awards expected to vest, on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period of the award, which is over periods of 3 years for stock options;
2 to 5 years for employee restricted stock and RSUs; and 1 to 2 years for non-employee restricted
stock and RSUs. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates,

In the Company’s pro forma information required under SFAS 123(R) for periods prior to fiscal
2007, the Company accounted for forfeitures of stock options as they occurred. There was no stock-
based compensation expense recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss)
for the first nine months of fiscal 2007 for stock options granted prior 10 February 1, 2006 because no
portion of those stock-based paymént awards was unvested. In accordance with the modified
prospective transition method, the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods have
not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123(R). As a result of the
adoption of SFAS 123(R)}, $3.1 million of unearned compensation recorded in stockholders’ equity as of
February 1, 2006 was reclassified 1o and reduced the balance of additional contributed capital.

Transactions involving restricted stock and RSUs are summarized as follows:

Aggregate
Weighted Average Intrinsic Value
! Sharcs Graut date Fair Value  (In thousands)
Nonvested restricted stock and RSUs at January 31, 2007 . 343,430 $24.63
Granted .. ... .. . ... . b 15,000 26.31
Vested ... e e (21,250) 25.08
Forfeited. . . ... ... o (57,810) 26.31
Nonvested restricted stock and RSUs at January 31, 2008 . 279,370 $24.30 $6,087
Total restricted stock and RSUs at January 31, 2008 . . . .. 306,620 $24.70 $6,681

64




BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 16. Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

Compensation expense related to restricted stock and RSUs for fiscal year 2006, 2007 and 2008
was approximately $1.1 million, $1.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively. Restricted stock and RSUs
expense included in discontinued operations for fiscal 2006 and 2007 was approximately $0.1 million
and $0.2 million, respectively. There was no restricted stock and RSUs benefit included in discontinued
operalions for fiscal 2008. There were no restricted stock or RSU exercises during fiscal 2006 or 2007.
The total intrinsic value of restricted stock and RSUs vested during fiscal 2008 was 30.5 million. The
weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock and RSUs granted during 2006, 2007 and
2008 was approximately $32, $22 and $26 per share, respectively. The total fair value of restricted stock
and RSUs vested during fiscal 2006, 2067 and 2008 was approximately $34, $31 and $25 per share,
respectively.

As of January 31, 2008, there was $3.2 million of unearned compensation expense related to non-
vesled restricted stock and RSU awards. The total unrecognized slock-based compensation cost to be
recognized in future periods as of January 31, 2008 does not consider the elfect of stock-based awards
that may be issued in subsequent periods. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 1.7 years, As of Janvary 31, 2008, approximately 300,000 RSUs are expected to vest
over a weighled average period of 1.7 years,

Transactions involving stock options are summarized as follows:
Weighted Average

Option Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
QOutstanding at January 31, 2007 ... ....... 877.500 $26.32 4.56
Options granted . . . ................. — —
Options exercised . . ... ... .. ......... 283,400 24.98
Options expired . ................... 6,667 21.67
Options forfeited . . ... .. ... .. ....... 140,033 27.07 .
Outstanding at January 31,2008 .. .. ... ... 447,400 327.01 $24.825

o
o
<

At January 31, 2007 and 2008, options to purchase 860,000 and 442,400 shares, respectively, were
vested and exercisable.

Compensation expense for fiscal 2008 related to stock options was de minimis. As of January 31,
2008, there was an immaterial amount of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options
that is expected to be recognized over a period of 1.3 years. All outstanding stock options at January
31, 2008 are expected to vest.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (the
difference between the Company’s closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal year 2008 and the
exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received by the
option holders had all option holders exercised their options on January 31, 2008. Intrinsic vatue will
change in future periods based on the fair market value of the Company’s stock and the number of
shares outstanding. The total intrinsic value of stock opiions exercised during 2006, 2007 and 2008 was
approximately $1.2 million, $0.3 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

Upon adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company elected 1o continue to use the Black-Scholes oplion-
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”) to determine fair value for stock option grants. The Company’s
determination of fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing
model is affected by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly
complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to: the Company’s
expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, and actual and projected employee stock
option exercise behaviors.
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|

Note 16. Stock Based Compensation (Continued)
Assumptions used to estimate fair value

The fair value of stock options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model.
The Company granted 17,500 stock options during the year ended Januvary 31, 2007. The Company’s
expected volatility assumption is based on an equal weighting of the Company’s daily historical stock
price. The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield on a U.S. Treasury constant maturity with
a remaining term equal to the expected lives of the option granted. The expected lives of the options
are determined based on the contractual term of the options, the vesting terms and the historical
exercises and forfeitures experienced. The expected dividend yield is based on the Company’s current
and expected dividend rate as of the grant date. The fair value of these stock options granted in fiscal
2007 was determined using the following weighted average assumptions:

|

Expected volatility . .. .. Ly e e e e e e e 29%
Risk free Interest Tates . .. ... o i e 4.94%
Expected lives (in years) .. .. ... ... . 3.5

Expected dividend yield .. ... ... ... ... . . . ... e 2.23%

{
No stock oplions were granted by the Company during the years ended January 31, 2006 and 2008.
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended January 31, 2007 was $4.78.
The fair value of shares vested during fiscal 2008 was insignificant.

Pro forma Impact of 123(R)

|

If compensation expense for the Company’s stock options had been determined in accordance with
the fair value method in SFAS 123(R) and SFAS 148, the Company’s reported net income and earnings
per share for the year ended January 31, 2006 would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts

indicated below: \
1

(In thousands, except per share data)

Nel earnings:

Asreporied . . .. e e e 324,857
Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under SFAS

No. 123 for all awards, netof related tax . .. .. ... .. .. v u.. 2,873
Proforma ... ... ... . . . $21,984

Net earnings per common share:
As reported: !

Basic........... e 5 0.61

Diluted . .. e e (.60
Pro forma: .

Basic........... e e e e $ 0.54

Diluted ... .53

Other Information

Authorized unissued shares may be used under the stock-based compensation plans. The Company
intends to issue shares of its common stock to meet the stock requirements of its awards in the future.

|
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Note 17. Segment Information

Blyth is a designer and marketer of home fragrance products and accessories, home dgor, seasonal
decorations, houschald convenience items, personalized gifts and products for the foodservice trade.
The Company competes in the global home expressions industry, and the Company’s products can be
found throughout North America, Europe and Australia. The Company’s financial results are reported
in three segmenis—the Direct Selling segment, the Calalog & Inlernet segment and the Wholesale
segment. These reporiable segments are based on similarities in distribution channels, customers and
management oversight.

Within the Direct Selling segment, the Company designs, manufactures or sources, markets and
distributes an extensive line of products including scented candles, candle-related accessories, reed
diffusers, spa products and other fragranced products under the PartyLite® brand. The Company also
operates a small Direct Selling business, Two Sisters Gourmet that focuses on selling gourmet foods for
everyday use. All direct selling products are sold directly to the consumer through a network of
independent sales consultants using the party plan method of direct selling. PartyLite brand products
are sold in North America, Europe and Australia. Two Sisters Gourmet® brand products are sold in
North America.

Within the Catalog & Internel segment, the Company designs, sources and markets a broad range
of household convenience items, premium photo albums, frames, holiday cards. personalized gifts,
kitchen accessories and gourmet coffee and Lea. These products are sold directly 1o the consumer under
the Boca Java®, Easy Comforis®, Exposures®, Home Marketplace®, Miles Kimball® and Waller Drake®
brands. These products are sold in North America.

Within the Wholesale segment, the Company designs, manufactures or sources, markets and
distributes an extensive line of home fragrance products, candle-related accessories, seasonal
decorations such as ornaments and trim, and home dgor products such as picture frames, lumps and
textiles. Products in this segment are sold primarily in North America to retailers in the premium,
specialty and mass channels under the CBK®, Colomial Candle of Cape Cod®, Colonial at HOME® and
Seasons of Cannon Falls® brands. In addition, chafing fuel and tabletop lighting products and
accessories for the “away from home™ or foodservice trade are sold through this segment under the
Ambria®, HandyFuel® and Sterno® brands.

Earnings in all scgments represent net sales less operaling expenses directly related to the business
segmenls and corporate expenses allocated to the business segments. Other income (expense) includes
interest expense, interest income and equity in earnings of investees, which are not allocaled to the
business segments. Identifiable assets for each segment consist of assets used directly in its operations
and intangible assets, if any, resulling from the purchase of businesses. Unallocated Corporate within
the identifiable assets include corporate cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, prepaid
income tax, corporate fixed assels, deferred bond costs, deferred income taxes and other long-term
investments and asscts, which are not allocated to the business segments.

The geographic area data includes net trade sales based on product shipment destination and long-
lived assets (which consists of fixed assets, goodwill and long-term investments) based on physical
localion.
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[
Note 17, Segment Information (Coqtinued)

Operating Segment Information

Year ended January 31,

! 2006 2007 2008
! {In thousands)

Financiad Information
Net Sples
Direct Selling . . . .. e e e e e § 704,143 0§ 694048 S 636,500
Multi-chanael Group:

Catalog & Internet . . ... ... .. 187,319 199,347 206,767

Whelesale . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... O, 362,799 327,220 27,383
Subtotal Multi-channed Group .. . ... ... .. R 350,118 520,567 478,150
okl L e $1,254,261  $1,220611  §1,164,950
Eamings(t)
Dircct Selling . . . . . .. e e e e $ 107692 $ BG681 § 98,749
Multi-channel Group: |

Catalog & Inlernet . . . . o o e (428 3679 (48,904)

Wholesale . . .. ........ ... ... ... e e (62,007 (74,886) (18,958)
Subtotal Multi-channel Group . . . .. ... ... e, (62,525) (71.207) (67,862)
Operating profit . . . . .. .. e e 45,167 15,644 30,887
Other income (BXPENSE) . . . . . . o ot it i e e e e (18.723) (10,275} {9,162)
Earnings before income taxes and minority inferest . . . . . ... . ... ... $ 26444 % 5369 0§ 21,725
Identifiable Asscts
Direct Selling . .. .................. b e e e $ 230,097 § 238194 § 306484
Multi-charnel Group:

Catalog & Internet ... ... ... .. ..... e e e e e e e 165,672 152,068 103,677

Wholesale . . . . oo e e e e e e 522,386 181,384 146,612
Subtotal Multi-channel Group . . . .. . .. L e e 688,058 333,452 250,289
Unallocated Corporate .. ... .. .. ... ... L e 198,365 202,992 110,649
Tobal . e e e e e e SLIGS26  § 774638 8 667422
Capital Expenditures(2)
Direct Selling . . . . . . L. e e e e, $ 6351 % 10790 § 4491
Multi-channet Group:

Catalog & INEINEL . . . L o e e e e e 3,086 3415 3842

Wholesale . . . .. ....... ... .. ..... S 7,514 3,321 2,092
Subtotal Multi-channel Group .. ... ... ... e e e 10,600 6,736 5,934
Unallocated COMPOLIE . . . o v o oo et et et e e e et e e e e e s 321 188 (1,004)
Total o o e $ 17212 0% 17714 8 942
Depreciation and Amortization
Direct Selling . . . o oo $ 12326 % 12799 5 11200
Multi-channel Group:

Catafog & Tmternet . . ... ........... e e e e 5,080 4,587 3911

Wholesale, . . .. ................. e e 17,479 16,337 16,001
Subtotal Multi-channel Group . . . . . ... oL 22,559 20,924 19,912
Unallocated Corporale . . . . . .ot i ettt e i e e e e 90 %07 792
Tota) L e e e $ 35875 0§ 34630 § 31,94
Geugraphic Information .
Net Sales
United SIaLEs . . . . . .. e e e e e $ 946832 § 888206 § 775,789
Interpational . ... ... ... .. ... ... ..., e e e e e e 307429 332,305 389,161
Tolal . . e e e $1,254.261  $1220,611 81,164,950
Long Lived Assets
United States . . ... ... ... L. L e e $ 302245 § 233998 § 162,319
Intermational . . ........ .. ... .. ..., I 149,288 43,128 43,370
Total .. .. ... . e e e e e $ 451533 8 277,126 3 205,689

(1) Fiscal 2006, 2007 and 2008 earnings include non-cash pre-tax goodwill and other intangibles impairment charges of $53.3 million, $48.8
miflion in the Wholcsale segment and $49.2 million in the Catalog & Internel segment, respectively (Sce Note ¢ to the Consolidated

Financial Statements).

!
{2)  Capital Expenditures are presented net of disposals and transfers. The unallocated corporate balance is net of transfers to other divisions,
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Note 18. Stock Repurchase Plan

On December 13, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors announced a new stock repurchase
program for 6,000,000 shares, which will become cffective alter the 12,000,000 shares authorized for
repurchase under the old stock repurchase program are exhausted. Since January 31, 2007, the
Company has purchased 3,221,553 shares on the open market for a cost of $64.2 million bringing the
cumulative total purchased shares to 9,650,735, under the preexisting plan, as of January 31, 2008 for a
total cost of approximately $213.7 million,

Note 19. Earnings Per Share

The following table presents the components of basic and diluted net earnings per common share:

Year ended January 31,

2000 2007 2008
(In thousands)

Netearnings . ........ ... ... v, . $24,857 $(103,173) $11,072
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding:

Basic .. ... .. L 40,9506 39,781 38,592

Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted

shares .. .. ... o L L 220 276 334

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding:

Piluted. ... .. ... .. . 41,176 40,057 38,926

As of January 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, options (o purchase 675,943, 1,045,025 and 432,400 shares
of common stock, respectively, are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share
because the effect would be antidilutive.

Note 20. Treasury and Common Stock

Shares Amount

(In thousands, except shares)

Treasury Stock

Balance al February 1, 2005. ... ... .. ... ... ...... 9,468,416 $(285,064)
Restricted stock cancellations . . ., ........ ... ., ... {609)
Treasury stock purchases . .......... ... .......... 65,000 (2,071)
Balance at January 31,2006.. ... ................. 9,533,416 (287,744)
Restricted stock cancellations . . ... ................ {982)
Treasury stock purchases . ....... ... ... v, 1,802,382 (34,988)
Balance at January 31, 2007 .. .. ... ... ... ... 11,335,798 (323,714)
Treasury slock purchases .. ........ ... ... ... 3,221,553 (64,171)
Balance at January 31, 2008 . . .. . ... ... ... ..., .. 14,557,351 $(387,885)
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Note 20. Treasury and Common Stock (Continued)

Shares Amount

(In thousands,
except shares)

Common Stock
Changes in Common Stock were:

Balance at February 1, 2005 .. .. .. ... ... ... ... ...... 50,367,827 $1.007
Common stock issued in connection with long-term incentive

Plan. ... 158,733 3
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations. .. ......... 1,500
Balance at January 31,2006 . ....... ... ... . ... 50,528,060 1,010
Common stock issued in connection with long-term incentive

plan. ... 109,000 3
Balance at January 31, 2007 .......................... 50,637,060 1,013
Common stock issued in ¢onnection with long-term incentive

Plan. . . e 289,400 6
Common stock cancelled in connection with long-term

incenlive plan. . . ... . .. e (4,000) (1)
Balance at Januvary 31, 2008 .......................... 50,922,460 $1,018

Note 21. Selected Quarterly Financ;ial Data (Unaudited)

A summary of selected quarterly information for the years ended January 31 is as follows:
‘ 2007 Quarter Ended
| April 30 July 31 Qctober 31 Januvary 31
(In thousands, except per share data)

Netsales .. ... ... . i $280,247 $262,617 $297911 § 379.836
Grossprofit. . ... ... e 141,334 128,046 137,348 189,941
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations . ......... 8,143  (20,769)(2) 1,932 13,248(3)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations(4)..... .. (38,752)  (68,598) {2,153) 3,776
Netearnings (loss) ......... ... ... ... ... ..... (30,609)  (89,367) {221) 17,024
Basic
Earnings {loss) from continuing c'!perations per
common share . .......... .. ... ... ... $ 020 § (052) § 005 § 0.34
Earnings (loss) from dlscontmued operations per
common share .. ......... e (0.95) (1.72) (0.05) 0.10
Net earnings (loss) per common :share(l) .......... $§ (0.75) $ (224) % — 3 0.43
Diluted
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations per
common share ........... (e $ 020 § (052) $§ 005 § 0.33
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations per
common share ... ... .. ... . . ... {0.95) (1.72) (0.05) 0.10
Nelt earnings (loss) per common share(1) . ... ... ... $ (075) 8 (2.24) % — 3 0.43
[
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Note 21, Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

2008 Quarter Ended

April 30 July 31 October 31 January 31
{In thousands, except per share data)
Netsales. . . ... ... .. i $270,367 $234.871 $285869 § 373,843
Grossprofit . ... ... . . 141,704 121,370 144,165 208,232
Earnings from continuing operations . ............ 11,732 3,172 6.577 (10,409)(5)
Earnings from discontinued operations . ... .. .... .. -— — — —
Net earnings (loss) ... ... ... i, 11,732 3,172 6,577 {10,409)
Basic
Earnings (loss) from centinuing operations per
COMMON SNAre .. ...ttt et § 030 § 008 $ 017 3% (0.28)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations per
commonshare .. ..... .. ... ... .o oL — — — —
Net earnings (loss) per common share(1) ........ $§ 030 $ 008 $ 017 $ (0.28)
Diluted
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations per
common share . ............ ... i, $§ 030 § 008 3 017 § {0.28)
Earnings (loss} {rom discontinued operations per
common share .......... ... . ... . .. 0. — — — —
Net earnings (loss) per common share(l) ...... .. $§ 030 % 008 3§ 017 % {0.28)

(1) The sum of per share amounts for the quarters does not necessarily equal that reported for the

year because the computalions are made independently.

{2) Second quarter, fiscal 2007 net loss, includes a goodwill impairment charge of $36.8 in the

Wholesale segment {See Note 9 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(3) Fourth quarter, fiscal 2007 net loss, includes a goodwill impairment charge of $12.0 in the

Whoiesale segment (Sec Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(4) In fiscal 2007, the Kaemingk B.V,, Edelman B.V,, Euro-Dgor B.V,, Gies and Colony business were
sold (See Note 4 to the Consoclidated Financial Statements). The results of operations for these
business units have been reclassified to discontinued operations for all periods presented.

(5) Fourth quarter, fiscal 2008 net earnings, includes goodwill and other intangible asset impairment
charges of $49.2 in the Catalog & Internet segment. (See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements).
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreeinents with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

!
1
'

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the paiticipation of our principal executive officer and our principal
financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exclnnge Act”) Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the
period covered by this report as required by paragraph (b) of Exchanpe Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15.
Based upon this evalualion, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of January 31, 2008,

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal conirol over
financial reporting. as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the
principal executive and financial officers, and effected by the board of directors and management, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statemenlts for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Uniled States of America. Because of its inherent limitations, such as human
judgment, errors or mistakes, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject (o the
risk that controls may become inadequaie because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or pro;ccdures may deteriorate.

We performed an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as
of January 31, 2008 based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The objective of this
assessment is to determine whether our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
January 31, 2008. Based on our assessment, management believes that, as of January 31, 2008, our
internal control over financial reporting was effective based on the criteria in the framework.

i
(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes iﬁ our internal control over financial reporting identified in
connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that
occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

(d) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blyth, Inc.
Greenwich, Connecticut

We have audiled the internal control over financial reporting of Blyth, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of January 31, 2008, based on Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporling, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal execulive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel
lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepted accountling principles.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transaclions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, inctuding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained. in all malerial respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 31, 2008, based on the criteria established in [nternal Conirol—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
as of and for the year ended January 31, 2008 of the Company and our report dated April 11, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinton on those financial statements and financial statement schedule and
included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company's adoption of Financial Accounting



{
|

i

Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an Interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109. .
|
/s/f DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
J
Chicago, IL
April 11, 2008
{tem 9B, Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 1. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this lem will be set forth in our Proxy Statement for our annual
meeting of stockholders scheduled to be held on June 4, 2008 (the “Proxy Statement”) under the
captions “Nominees for Election at the 2008 Annual Meeting for Terms Expiring in 2011,” “Continuing
Directors with Terms Expiring in 2009,” “Continuing Directors with Terms Expiring in 2010,”
“Executive Officers,” “Scetion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Code of Conduay,”
and “Board and Committee Meelings” and is incorporated herein by reference,

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement under the captions
“Executive Compensation,” “Employment Contracts and Severance Arrangements” and “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement under the caption
“Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners” and is incorporated herein by
reference,

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement under the captions
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be set {orth in our Proxy Statement under the caption
“Independent Accountant Fees” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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i PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
{a)(1). Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial stalements are contained on the indicated pages of this
report:

Page No.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firmy .. ... ... .. .. 33
Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheels. .. ... ... ... .. . .. . . . ... 34

Consolidated Statements of Earnings . . .. .............. ... ...... 35

Consolidated Slatements of Stockholders’ Equity .................. 36
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ... ......... ... ... ........ 37
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements .. ... ... . ... .. ....... 38

(a)(2). Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule is contained on the indicated page of this report:
Page No.
Valuation and Qualifying ACCOUNTS . ... .. ...\ttt ... S-2

All other schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable or the requested information is
shown in the consolidated financial statements or related notes.

(a)(3). Exhubits ‘

Exhibit No, Drescription of Exhibit ‘

3.1 Restaled Certificate of Incorporation {incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-77458))

32 Restated By-laws (inc'orporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (No. 33-77458))

4.1{(a) Form of Indenture, dated as of May 20, 1999, between the Registrant and First Union

National Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration
Statemenl on Form $-3 (Reg. No. 333-77721) filed on May 4, 1999)

4.1(b) Form of First Supplt:;:nental Indenture dated as of September 29, 1999 between the
Registrant and First Union National Bank, Trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 28, 1999)

4.1(c) Form of Sccond Supélemcnlal Indenture dated as of October 23, 2003 between the
Registrant and Wachévia Bank, National Association, Trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 (o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 22, 2003)

10.1 Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993, between Carol Point Builders 1
General Partnership and PartyLite Gifts, Inc. (incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-77458))
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.2

10.2(2)

103+

10.4+

10.5+

10.5(a)+

First Amendmenl. dated August 21, 1995, between ERI-CP, Inc., a Delaware corporation,
as successor 1o Carol Point Builders I General Parinership, and PartyLite Gifts, Inc., to
Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993, between Carol Point Builders [
General Partnership and PartyLite Gifls, Inc. (incorporated by reference o Exhibit 10.4(a)
1o the Registrant’s Annua! Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31,
1996)

Second Amendment, dated August 4, 2000, between Carol Poind LLC, a Massachusetts
limited liability company, as successor landlord to ERI-CP Inc., and PartyLite Gifts, Inc.,
to Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993, between Carol Point Builders |
General Partnership and PartyLite Gifts, Inc. (incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 10.4(a)
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31,
1996) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(b) to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002)

Third Amendment, dated February 28, 2001, between Carol Point LLC, a Massachusetts
limited liability company, as successor landlord to ERI-CP Inc., and ParlyLite Worldwide,
inc.,, as tenani, pursuant to Assignment and Assumption Agreemenl, dated Janvary 31,
2001, between PartyLitc Gifts, Inc. (assignor) and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc. (assignee), to
Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993, between Carol Point Builders [
General Parinership and PartyLite Gifts. Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4{a)
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31,
1996) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(c) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31. 2002)

Lease Agrecment, dated June 25, 1997, between Carol Stream I Development Company,
as landlord, PartyLite Gifts, Inc., as tenant, and the Registrant, as guarantor (incorporated
by reference Lo Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 1998)

First Amendment to Lease, dated February 1, 2001, between MP 437 Tower CS, Inc. by
RREEF Management Company, as landlord, as successor 1o Carol Stream [ Development
Company, and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc., as tenant, pursuant to Assignment and
Assumption Agreement, dated January 31, 2001, between PartyLite Gifts, Inc. (assignor)
and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc. (assignee) (incorporaled by reference 10 Exhibit 10.4(a) to
the Registranl’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002)

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors
(incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(No. 33-77458))

Blyth Industries, Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 4.1 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on
December 21, 1999)

Employment Agreement dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the Registrant and
Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2000)

Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 15, 2002 (o the Employment Agreement by and
between the Registrant and Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference 1o

Exhibit 10.6(a) to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2003)
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.5(b)+

10.5(c)+*
10.5(d)+*

10.5(e)+

10.0+

10.6(a)+

10.7

10.7(a)

10.8+

10.8(a)+

10.94

10.10+

Amendment No. 2 dated as of March 31, 2004 to the Employment Agreement by and
between the Registrant and Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.6{b) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Farm 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2004)

Amendment No. 3 dated as of September 29, 2046 to the Employment Agreement by and
. |
between the Registrant and Robert B. Goergen

Amendment No. 4 dated as of June 6, 2007 to the Employment Agreement by and
between the Registrant and Robert B. Goergen

Amendment No. 5 dated as of December 13, 2007 to the Employment Agreement by and
between the Registrant and Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed December 18, 2007)

[

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the Registrant
and Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2000)

[
Amendment No. 1 dated as of March 12, 2004 to the Registration Rights Agreement
dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the Registrant and Robert B. Goergen
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7(a) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004)

Credit Agreement, dated June 2, 2005 among the Registrant, PartyLite Trading. SA, the
Lenders listed therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Bank of
America, N.A. and LaSalle Bank National Association as Co-Syndication Agents
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 10 the Registrant’s Current Report on

Form $-K filed June 6, 2005)

Amendment No. 1 da:ted as of October 2, 2006 to the Credit Agreement dated as of
June 2, 2005, among Blyth, Inc., PartyLite Trading, SA, the Lenders listed therein,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Bank of America, N.A. and
LaSalle Bank National Association as Co-Syndication Agents (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 5, 2006)

Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant (incorporated
by reference 1o Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 17,
2000) |

Amendment No. 1 tothe Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of
the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9(a) to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004)

Form of Non-transferable Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Amended and
Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant (incorporated by reference
o Exhibit 4.2 (o the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended July 31, 1996)

Form of Non-transferable Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Amended
and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended July 31, 1996)

{
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.11+

10.11{a)+

10.12+

10.13+

10.13(a)+

211
23.1*
31.1*
31.2%
32.1*

32.2*

Amended and Restated 1994 Siock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors of the
Registrant (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 4.1 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed Aprii 19, 2002)

Amendment No. I to the Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-
Employee Directors of the Registrant {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12(a) to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal ycar ended January 31, 2004)

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee
Directors of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No, 33-77458))

2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed April 17, 2003)

Amendment No. 1 to the 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of the Registrant (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
April 27, 2004)

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Section 302 Certification of Chairman and Chiel Executive Officer
Section 302 Certification of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Vice President and Chief Financiul Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*  Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan required to be filed by Item 15(a)(3) of this report.

79




SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this repori to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
aulhorized.

Date: April 14, 2008 BLYTH, INC.

, By: /s/ ROBERT B. GOERGEN

' Name: Robert B, Goergen
5 Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
i
. ! - . .
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

i

Signature . Title Date
fs/ ROBERT B. GOERGEN Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; .
. y : . April 14, 2008
Robert B. Goergen Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ ROBERT H. BARGHAUS Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
‘ (Principal Financial and Accounting April 14, 2008
Robert H. Barghaus . Officer)

/s/ ANNE M. BUSQUET

Director April 14, 2008
Anne M., Busquet ,
!
|
/s/ JOHN W. BURKHART . .
i Director April 14, 2008
John W. Burkhart :
[
/s/ PAMELA M. GOERGEN | ) .
Director April 14, 2008
Pamela M. Goergen
/s/ NEAL 1. GOLDMAN , .
Director April 14, 2008
Neal I. Goldman
|
fs/ CaroL J. HOCHMAN . .
Director April 14, 2008
Carol J. Hochman :

|
|
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Signature Title Date

/s/ WILMA H. JORDAN

- Director April 14, 2008
Wilma H. Jordan
s/ Jamus M. MCTAGGART ) .
Director April 14, 2008
James M. McTaggart
. fs/ HOWARD E. RoS: . .
' Director April 14, 2008

Howard E. Rose

e
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SCHEDULE HI—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended January 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008
(In thousands)

1

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description ' of Period Fxpenses Deductions(1) Periuod
2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts .. ............... § 4,028 § 2,189 $ (2.325) §$ 3,892
Income tax valuation allowance .. ... ... .......... 4,038 767 (101) 4,704
Inventory reserve . ........... e 22,433 16,961 (17.075) 22,319
2007 '
Allowance for doubtful accounts .. .. ... .. ... ..., $3892 § 998 $(3,357) § 1,533
Income tax valuation allowance ... ... ........ . ... 4,704 15,171 {1.265) 18,610

Inventory reserve

2008

............ 22,319 29,251

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... . ....oveern.... $ 1,533 § 2,044 $
Income tax valuation allowance .. ................ 18,610 2,583

Inventory reserve

............................. 24,284 4,754

(27,286) 24,284

(1571)  § 2,006
(3,700) 17,493
(16,647) 12,391

|
(1) Deductions in 2007 and 2008 include the sale of Wholesale Europe and BHI NA, respectively.

END




